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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, | am
pleased to present to you our annual results and business review of our
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

This financial year remained a challenging one to our money lending
business. Although the demand for our loan products remained strong
and energetic which gave us opportunity to grow our loan portfolio, the
on-going Sino-US trade tension and Brexit (i.e. Britain exiting from the
European Union) continued to create economic uncertainty and
challenges to our money lending business. Even though the property
market in Hong Kong experienced “Indian summer” momentum after the
Lunar Chinese New year, we still continued to adopt a prudent and
cautious approach when conducting our money lending business,
particularly on our property-related loan products such as mortgage loan
and unsecured personal loan for property owners. The prudent and
cautious approach included stringent credit policy, strict control on loan-
to-value ratio, providing more first mortgage loan to our high net worth
customers, etc. Overall we recorded a steady growth in our loan portfolio
which slightly increased by 4.5% from HK$843.5 million in the last year to
HK$881.3 million for the current financial year.

Since the late 2016, we have diversified and launched our personal loan
products to expand our position in the money lending market. During the
current year, the personal loan business have already contributed interest
income to our Group of HK$46.5 million, which surged up our overall
interest income from HK$132.1 million for the last financial year to
HK$161.0 million for the current year, representing an increase of 21.9%.
Our net interest margin continued to be improved to 14.2% as compared
to 13.2% attained in the last year.

To reward and express gratitude to our Shareholders for their continuous
support, the Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.3 cents per Share. Including an interim dividend of HK1.2 cents per
Share paid during the year, total dividends paid and payable for the year
ended 31 March 2019 would be HK2.5 cents per Share.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERMES

For the next financial year, we anticipate that we shall continue to face
various risk factors and great uncertainty in our money lending business.
The on-going Sino-US trade tension and Brexit have escalated which
seems impossible to be resolved within a short period of time. Both the
stock market and property market in Hong Kong remained volatile and
unpredictable. All the above challenges lead us to be more cautious and
conservative in our money lending business in the next financial year.
Apart from leveraging our professionalism and highly experience in our
money lending business, we would continue to implement cautious and
periodical prudent measures, instantly and effectively review and tighten
our credit policy and tighten the loan-to-value ratio. We would also spend
more resources to expand our money lending products in unsecured
personal loan business. During the current financial year, we have already
achieved an equilibrium and our unsecured personal loan business has
started producing positive operating profits and cash flows to our Group.
We believe that our personal loan business would be the other revenue
and profit driver to our money lending business. By leveraging on our
professionalism, our well-known brand name “Hong Kong Finance” and
our profound experience in our money lending business, we expect a
moderate growth of our loan portfolio with a more healthy and solid
growth in our money lending business in the years to come.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere and heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders for their unwavering support to our Group. |
would also like to express my appreciation to the management and all of
our employees for their long-standing loyalty, diligence and contributions
to the success of our Group over the past years which help us achieving
our fruitful results. We will enhance our performance to the best of our
ability and will produce a more promising result and a great business
expansion for a brighter future.

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group was established in 1996. Through our operating history, we
have principally engaged in the money lending business specialising in
providing property mortgage loans in Hong Kong under the MLO. During
the current year, we continued to focus on our core business in property
mortgage loans under our well-known and highly recognised brand name
“Hong Kong Finance”. We also expanded our money lending business
to personal loan products in order to diversify ourselves in different
money lending market segments, to capture new market opportunities
and to enhance our overall interest margin.

Mortgage Loan Business

Mortgage loan business remained as the major source of the Group’s
revenue, contributing more than 70.0% to the Group’s revenue during
the current year. Interest income generated from mortgage loan business
remained stable and increased by 7.7% to HK$114.5 million during the
current year. Gross mortgage loan portfolio grew by 7.9% to HK$779.8
million as compared to that of the last year. During the current year, even
though the demand on our mortgage loan products remained strong and
energetic, the on-going Sino-US trade tension and Brexit (i.e. Britain
exiting from the European Union) continued to create economic
uncertainty and challenges to our mortgage loan business. Even though
the property market in Hong Kong experienced “Indian summer”
momentum after the Lunar Chinese New year, we still continued to adopt
prudent and cautious approaches such as stringent credit policy, strict
control on loan-to-value ratio, etc. These approaches have been applied
for our mortgage loan business since the last market correction in
property market in 2015/16, which persistently support the Group to
maintain stable growth in its mortgage loan portfolio and to generate
stable growth of interest income during the current year.

Personal Loan Business

Since the late 2016, we have diversified and launched our personal loan
products to expand our position in the money lending market. During the
current year, the interest income of the personal loan business increased
by 80.2% to HK$46.5 million, contributing about 30.0% to our Group’s
revenue, which also constitutes the major driver to our Group’s revenue
growth during the current year. Gross personal loan portfolio was
maintained at HK$134.3 million as at 31 March 2019, balance slightly
reduced as compared to that as at 31 March 2018. Due to economic
uncertainty and volatility, we conducted our personal loan business with
caution in order to attain high interest margin with manageable rates of
impairment and bad debts written off on our personal loan portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The money lending market in Hong Kong remains highly competitive, as
evidenced by the continuous increase in the number of money lenders
licensees, with over 2,000 licensees in Hong Kong as at 31 March 2019.
In October 2018, the Companies Registry, one of the governing
authorities of money lending business in Hong Kong, has imposed
additional licensing conditions to require all money lenders to comply with
the “Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money Lenders” issued in
September 2018 (“AML-CTF Guideline”).

Prior to issuing the above additional licensing conditions, our Group has
already established relevant guidelines and policies on dealing with anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing, which included
procedures for customer due diligence, reporting suspicious transactions,
record-keeping and staff training, in order to prevent and detect money
laundering and terrorist financing. The issuance of AML-CTF Guideline
assisted us to further strengthen our internal controls and procedures to
counteract these kinds of illegal activities. Even though we are
experienced and with strong sense on counteracting anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing, we shall strictly follow those
requirements under the AML-CTF Guideline so that we can provide
reliable and lawful loan products to our customers. Our Group will
continue to co-operate with the government and other authorities in order
to fight against such illegal activities, so as to retain the reputation of
financial institutions and money lenders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our interest income from money lending business of providing property
mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong increased by HK$28.9
million or 21.9% from HK$132.1 million for the last year to HK$161.0
million for the current year. Such increase was primarily due to the
personal loan business which contributed interest income of HK$46.5
million to our Group during the current year, increased by HK$20.7 million
or 80.2% from HK$25.8 million for the last year.

As for our interest income from our mortgage loan business, it remained
stable and increased by HK$8.2 million or 7.7% from HK$106.3 million
for the last year to HK$114.5 million for the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of investment
properties

During the current year, the Group recorded a loss of HK$1.5 million on
revaluation of our investment properties, as the Group experienced a
slight correction on Hong Kong property market during the current year.
During the last year, the Group recorded a gain of HK$21.6 million which
reflected the upward revaluation of the commercial and residential
properties held by our Group during the last year.

Provision for impairment and write-off of loans receivable,
net

We have recorded the provision for impairment and write-off of loans and
interest receivables of HK$24.7 million for the year (2018: HK$15.0
million).

Below is the breakdown of provision for impairment and write-off of loans
receivable incurred from property mortgage loans and personal loans
during the current year and the last year:

Property mortgage loans
MERBER
Year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

EfREMFZATVEER) Wi

RAFE AEEHSEHREVEEIS
1,500,000/87C ' "HRAEBRAEESH
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Personal loans
MAER
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILEE

2019 2018 2019 2018

20194 2018 F 20194 20184

HK$’ million HKS$’ million HK$’ million HKS$’ million

BEET AEET BEET BEATT

Provision for impairment BB 14.4 0.1 2.5 6.9
Loans receivable written-off ~ #fi$5E W & 3 - 2.2 7.8 5.8
14.4 2.3 10.3 12.7

The increase in provision for impairment assessment of loans receivable
was mainly due to the provision for impairment of HK$16.1 million made
on a sub-ordinate mortgage loan balance during the current year, of
which we considered its full recovery was in doubt. The write-off of loans
receivable represented the write-off of personal loans receivable in which
we considered them as uncollectible either due to (i) the long overdue
payments; (i) bankruptcy of the customers; or (iii) death of the customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

Administrative expenses

We have incurred administrative expenses of HK$53.9 million for the year
(2018: HK$58.9 million), which mainly comprised of employee benefit
expenses, advertising and marketing expenses, referral fees, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and other miscellaneous expenses. The
decrease in the administration expenses by HK$5.0 million or 8.5% was
mainly due to the reduction on relying our referral agents in our personal
loan business, which reduced the overall referral fees during the current
year.

Finance costs

We have incurred finance costs of HK$34.6 million for the year (2018:
HK$27.5 million), which mainly comprised of interest on interest bearing
bank and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow subsidiary and
issuance of bonds. The increase in the finance costs by HK$7.1 million or
25.8% was mainly attributable to the increase in utilisation of bank and
other borrowings during the current year.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin of our money lending business increased from
13.2% for the last year to 14.2% for the current year, which was mainly
attributed to the contribution from our personal loan business which
generally offered relatively higher interest rates to personal loan
customers than to mortgage loan customers.

Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, our profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of our Company achieved HK$42.2 million for the
current year as compared to HK$50.1 million for the last year,
representing a decrease of 15.8%.

Should the non-operating item of fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation
of investment properties be excluded, our profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of our Company would have achieved
HK$43.7 million for the current year as compared to HK$28.5 million for
the last year, representing an increase of 53.3%. Such significant
increase was mainly attributable to the contribution of our personal loan
business which turned around into a profit-making position during the
current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

LIQUIDITY AND SOURCES OF FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

During the current year, our Group’s operations and capital requirements
were financed principally through retained earnings, loans or advances
from our controlling shareholder, Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited,
as well as banks and other borrowings, and the issue of bonds. Based
on our current and anticipated levels of operations, barring unforeseeable
market conditions, our future operations and capital requirements will be
financed through loans from banks or other financial institutions that are
independent third parties, retained earnings, proceeds from the issue of
the bonds and our share capital. We had no significant commitments for
capital expenditure during the current year.

The Group recorded net current assets of HK$367.3 million as at 31
March 2019 while the net current assets as at 31 March 2018 was
HK$284.1 million.

As at 31 March 2019, cash and cash equivalent amounted to HK$37.3
million (2018: HK$33.7 million); amount due to a fellow subsidiary
amounted to HK$106.5 million (2018: HK$125.3 million); interest bearing
bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$360.9 million (2018:
HK$322.4 million), and bonds amounted to HK$98.2 million (2018:
HK$105.9 million).

During the current year, all interest bearing bank borrowings were
repayable on demand and were secured by our Group’s investment
properties, land and buildings, certain properties mortgaged to our
subsidiary and corporate guarantee of our Company, and interest bearing
at a weighted average effective interest rate of 5.0% per annum. The
amount due to a fellow subsidiary and the other borrowings were
unsecured, interest bearing at a rate ranging from 4.5% to 24.0% per
annum and with fixed terms of repayment. The bonds were unsecured,
interest bearing at their respective pre-determined interest rate ranging
from 4.5% to 6.0% per annum, and were repayable upon 7 years of their
maturity.

During the current year, none of our banking facilities were subject to any
covenants relating to financial ratio requirements or any material
covenants that restrict our Group to undertake additional debt or equity
financing. As at 31 March 2019, our unutilised banking facilities and other
unutilised facility available to our Group for drawdown amounted to
HK$133.2 million and HK$93.5 million, respectively. It is our Group’s
policy to prioritise the utilisation of our available facilities which offer the
lowest finance cost to our Group.

During the current year, our bonds were subject to covenants relating to
financial ratio requirements, such as interest coverage ratio, current ratio
and debt to equity ratio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E A S AT

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
The following table sets forth the key financial ratios of our Group during
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 respectively:

EEE =R
TEREFNAEE D BIREZE2019F K 2018 4F

SABTHIFEZ 2B X

As at 31 March

A3A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
Current ratio BN 2= 1.77 1.59
Gearing ratio @ BExRe 0.93 0.97

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ANHLEE

2019 2018

2019 20184

Net interest margin ratio @ FREEO 14.2% 13.2%
Return on equity ratio @ B EL 7.4% 9.3%
Interest coverage ratio © FEBEXRO 2.4 times f& 2.2 times &

Notes:

1)

@

SIG

Current ratio was calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities
as at the respective year-end date.

Gearing ratio was calculated by dividing net debts (being the total interest
bearing bank and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow subsidiary and
the bonds, less cash and cash equivalents) by total equity as at the
respective year-end date.

Net interest margin ratio was calculated by dividing net interest income (being
the interest income net of finance costs) by the monthly average balance of
mortgage loan receivables at the respective year-end date.

Return on equity ratio was calculated by dividing profit and total
comprehensive income for year attributable to owners of the Company by
the total equity as at the respective year-end date.

Interest coverage ratio was calculated by dividing profit before finance costs

and income tax expenses (excluding fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties) by the finance costs for the corresponding year.

NIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Our Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
during the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

IMPORTANT EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Our Group did not have any important events affecting our Company and
our subsidiaries since the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MONEY LENDERS ORDINANCE

Our Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations. In the opinion of our Directors, in addition
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, MLO constituted a significant
influence on our Group’s money lending business during the current year.

The MLO is the principal ordinance which governs the money lending
business in Hong Kong. Our money lending business has been
conducted through the subsidiaries of our Company. Since the first
granting of money lenders licences to our subsidiaries, we have never
received any objection from and have never been investigated by the
Registrar of Money Lenders nor the Commissioner of Police regarding
the renewal of the money lenders licences.

To the best of our knowledge, our Group has complied with the MLO in
all material aspects, and that our Directors are not aware of any matter
that might come to their attention that our money lenders licence would
be suspended, terminated or would not be renewed in foreseeable
future.

CUSTOMERS

During the current year, our customers comprised individuals and
corporations in Hong Kong and were all independent third parties (within
the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), which were not
connected persons or senior management to our Group.

During the current year, our top five customers (as determined by interest
income generated) accounted for approximately 12.3% (2018: 10.5%) of
our total revenue and our single largest customer accounted for
approximately 3.4% (2018: 2.3%) of our total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, our Group employed 40 (2018: 47) full time
employees. The total staff costs of our Group for the current year were
HK$23.7 million (2018: HK$22.0 million).

Our Group adopts a remuneration policy covering the position, duties
and performance of our employees. The remuneration of our employees
include salary, overtime allowance, bonus and various subsidies. We
conduct performance appraisal on an annual basis. Our Company has
also adopted the share option scheme on 4 September 2013, the
purpose of which is to provide incentives to our employees who made
contributions to our Group with a view to motivating them and/or
attracting and retaining them for the long term growth of our Group. No
share option was granted during the current year. As at 31 March 2019,
18,800,000 share options were outstanding, which represents
approximately 4.5% of the issued ordinary shares of our Company.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, our land and buildings of HK$75.8 million (2018:
HK$77.7 million), our investment properties of HK$84.7 million (2018:
HK$86.2 million) and certain properties mortgaged to our subsidiary with
aggregate fair values of these properties of approximately HK$479.2
million (2018: HK$524.4 million) were secured for the Group’s bank
borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the current year, the business activities of our Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Our Directors do not consider that
our Group was exposed to any significant foreign exchange risks. Our
Group did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge against the
volatility associated with foreign currency transactions and other financial
assets and liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2019, our Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2018: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

OUTLOOK

For our mortgage loan business, although we maintained stable growth
in our interest income and mortgage loan portfolio during the current
year, we have to face various risk factors and great uncertainty in the
next financial year. The on-going Sino-US trade tension and Brexit have
escalated which seem impossible to be resolved within a short period of
time. Both the stock market and property market in Hong Kong remained
volatile and unpredictable. All the above challenges lead us to be more
cautious and conservative in our mortgage loan business in the next
financial year. To prepare ourselves in facing these challenges and future
fluctuation in property market, apart from leveraging our professionalism
and highly experience in our mortgage loan business, we would continue
to implement cautious and periodical prudent measures, instantly and
effectively review and tighten our credit policy, increase the proportion of
first mortgage loans and high net-worth customers and tighten the loan-
to-value ratio. Currently we have already reduced the loan portfolio from
high risk customers in order to minimise the potential default risk. We
expect that the market condition is likely to remain highly unstable and
unpredictable but the demand for our mortgage loan products will remain
strong. By leveraging on our professionalism, our well-known brand
name “Hong Kong Finance” and our profound experience in our
mortgage loan business, we expect a moderate growth of our mortgage
loan portfolio with a more healthy and solid growth in our mortgage loan
business in the years to come.

As for our personal loan business, we have already achieved an
equilibrium and were started producing positive operating profits and
cash flows to our Group. We believe that our personal loan business
would be the other revenue and profit driver and we shall continue to
invest resources in our personal loan business. In fact, the above-
mentioned market uncertainty and fluctuation have pushed us to be more
conservative for growing our personal loan portfolio. We would not blindly
and significantly grow our personal loan portfolio without any vigorous
and effective controls on credit and default risks to counteract the then
adverse market conditions. Based on our professionalism and
enthusiasm in money lending market, and on our capital investment in
the personal loan business, we expect our personal loan business would
grow with fruitful results which would increase our overall interest income
and margin and the profitability of our Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the current year, our Group faced a number of risks and
uncertainties which might have affected our Group’s financial
performance and conditions, results of operations and our growth
potential. Some of these risks and uncertainties which were significant to
our Group for the current year are set out below. Risks and uncertainties
other than those outlined below may not be material for the current year
but could become material in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R M

Financial risk

Our Group’s activities are exposed to various types of financial risks such
as market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. Our Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on our Group’s financial performance. Details of
the aforesaid financial risk factors and the respective risk management
measures during the current year are elaborated in Note 3.1 “Financial
risk factors” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of actual losses in values caused by the events
that these actual losses arise from due to the inadequacy of or failed
internal processes, people and systems, or from external events
(including legal risk), which differ from the expected losses. Our executive
Directors are responsible for determining an overall operational risk
control framework, devising and updating policies and procedures that
are adequate to control these operational risks. Our executive Directors
meet regularly to review operational issues, conduct sample checks on
our loan files for proper security documentation. Our senior management
is responsible for supervising the day-to-day adherence of operational
control procedures and maintenance of security documentation. We also
provide training to our employees on our policies and procedures, as well
as update them of current legislation and practices. We have formulated
credit monitoring policies and operational procedures (which are
continuously updated) to ensure that our employees comply with our
internal procedures and requirements.

Market risk

The performance of our money lending business may be affected by the
changes in economic conditions, business environment and property
market in Hong Kong. Our executive Directors are responsible for
determining an overall market risk control framework, monitoring and
assessing market conditions and devising refined policies in light of the
above adverse factors affecting our Group’s performance and market
position. Our senior management is responsible for making sure that the
policies so developed are duly implemented and executed.

Valuation of pledged collaterals and investment properties
We have granted our secured mortgage loans to our customers based
on the values of the properties that these customers can mortgage to us
as collaterals. Therefore, any fluctuation of the values of these collaterals
of our customers will affect both the amount of our mortgage loans
granted and the risk of recovering the full amount of mortgage loans in
the event of default. These will in turn affect our interest income and the
amount of provision for impairment assessment. We will closely monitor
the safety margin of our mortgage loans and assess the relevant risk from
time to time. Our loan officers will also assess our mortgage loans
individually to see whether such amount of mortgage loans can be fully
recovered with reference to the loan repayment ability of that customer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of
our business and our Shareholders for enabling them to evaluate how the
principles of corporate governance have been applied. The corporate
governance principles of our Company emphasis a quality board, sound
internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

Our Company has adopted and complied with the Code Provisions
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had reviewed our
Company’s corporate governance policies. The Directors will carry out a
regular review and will propose any amendment, if and when necessary,
to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

The below sets out the corporate governance principles and practices
adopted by the Group which indicate how the Group has applied relevant
principles in the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a variety
and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business,
marketing, finance, investment and legal profession. During the year and
up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board was as
follows:

Directors

=

Exg

EEZEHE

SEESHAMAARESAEN  BR=Z2WNTE
ER=BBINATES - REFBZHILZ
e R &R RESR  BE - ZH &
B REMEREE - RFARBEARARER
B EERREKBEINEMT

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEENERK

Executive Directors:
HITES
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
BRtE e
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board)
RABRE (EFSLE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
MIFB R (TTHAEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
PRILER S A
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
b ptas

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
REIE T4

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Tse Pui To. The roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals.

During the year, the Chairman has met with all of three independent non-
executive Directors without the executive Directors present.

Member of Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee

REEBRLR

Chairman of Audit Committee
EZLEBCER

Chairman of Remuneration Committee
SMEEgERE

Member of Audit Committee
EREZEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REEZEEKE

Member of Audit Committee
BEZEBEEGKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
yMEZEEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee

REEZBEKE
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Our Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules that the Board contains at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board, and at
least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The independent
non-executive Directors have dedicated to provide our Company with
professional advice with respect to the steady operation and
development of our Company. They also exercised supervision and
coordination to safeguard the interests of our Company and our
Shareholders.

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (independent non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee) is regarded as the appropriate person
to fulfill such qualifications of having appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
to our Company their independence in particularly in regard to the
requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that the independent non-executive Directors are free from any business
or other relationship that may influence their exercise of independent
judgement and are considered to be independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The operation of the board

The Board’s main task is to supervise and direct the management of our
Company to operate under good corporate governance in order to
maximise value of our Shareholders while balancing the interest of our
various stakeholders.

The Board holds meetings to monitor the performance of our Company

and to be briefed with market developments, to discuss and decide on

major corporate, strategic and operational issues, and to appraise any

good investment opportunities available.

The major duties performed by our Board are as follows:

1. setting our Company’s values and standards, the objectives of our
Company and responsibilities of the Board and its various
committees;

2. establishing the strategic direction for our Company;

3. setting targets for and monitoring the performance of the
management of our Group;

4. supervising the annual and interim results of our Group;
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5. ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective internal control 5.
is in place to assess and manage the risk of our Group and
implementing appropriate systems to manage these risks;

6. overseeing the relationships between our Company and our 6.
Shareholders, customers, the community, various government
authorities, interest groups and others who have a legitimate
interest in the responsible conduct of our Group’s business;

7. identifying and assessing any matters involving a conflict of interest 7.
for a substantial Shareholder or a Director;

8.  determining (if any and available) any material acquisitions and/or 8.
disposals of assets, investments, capital, projects, authority levels,
major treasury policies, risk management policies and key human
resources issues; and

9.  considering and determining issues which are the responsibilities of 9.
the Board pursuant to our Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association and the relevant laws and regulations in force by
which our Company is governed from time to time.
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The Board is also responsible for the following corporate governance & =& G HEIE TS A8

duties:

1. developing and reviewing our Company’s policies and practices on 1.
corporate governance and making recommendations on any
amendment or updates (if any);

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional 2.
development of Directors and our Company’s senior management;

3. reviewing and monitoring our Company’s policies and practices on 3.
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and 4.
compliance manual (if any) applicable to our Company’s employees
and Directors;

5. reviewing our Company’s compliance with the CG Code and 5.
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under the CG
Code; and

6. being responsible for performing any other corporate governance 6.
duties and functions set out in the CG Code and the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time), or delegating the responsibility to a
committee or committees (if applicable).
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The Board delegates to the management of the Company in respect of
the major corporate matters as stated below:

1. preparation of the annual and interim results of the Group to be
approved by the Board;

2. giving clear directions to the management team as to their powers
of management, and circumstances in which the management
team should report back;

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal control and risk
management procedures of the Group;

4. execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the Group
adopted by the Board; and

EEeBUTHEAREIECREERTAR
AIEEERE

1. WEBMESSREZARBEFERSD
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2. MEBEBzEEENLREEBEHKARE
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3. EBEASEBEsARAREZLERER
HIfE

4. BITEFEMRMIAEELERER
T R

5.  carrying out day-to-day management, administration and operation 5. #{TAEBHESE (THREEZET
of the Group, etc. Y o
The Board members are required to meet regularly at least four tmesa EEZ@EBEFEVRITOANEREHE - NF
year. During the year, all the Board members have met four times and (R 2 EF /K ECBITINREHE  WHE
have attended the annual general meeting of our Company. The ARAFERITVREAFAS - SEEXFZE
attendance of each Director at these meetings are stated as follows: @ 7 IERE T
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board meetings annual general
Members of the Board regularly held meeting held
e HERE,
ESEER BRREFKE
EEENE SRETRE BITRE
Executive Directors:
HITES
Mr. Chan Koung Nam 4/4 1/1
BRLEESEA
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board) 4/4 1/1
RABEE(EFST/E)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 11
AIBB R (TTBAESL)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHITES :
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond 4/4 1/1
PRI SR SE A4
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 4/4 1/1
RIRmG x4
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 4/4 1/1
KRB & S
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Board meetings regularly held during the year were scheduled in advance
and notices of not less than fourteen days were given to all Directors so
as to give them an opportunity to attend. Board papers were circulated
to Directors not less than three days in advance before the date of the
Board meeting to enable the Directors to be well informed on matters to
be raised and discussed at the Board meetings. All Directors were given
an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

In addition, Directors at all times had full and timely access to all
information of our Group and may seek independent professional advice
at our Company’s expense in carrying out their functions, after making a
request to the Board.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, is the brother
of Mr. Chan Koung Nam, and both of them are the executive Directors
and substantial Shareholders of the Company. The biographies of the
Chairman and the Directors are set out on in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”. Save as disclosed on those pages
as set out above or any pages in this annual report, the Board members
do not have any family, financial, business or other material/relevant
relationship with each other and in particular, between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer as disclosed therein.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions have been published on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment and re-election of retiring Director

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
our Company for an initial term of three years and is renewable
automatically for successive terms of three years, and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has been appointed for an initial
term of two years and thereafter it may be extended for such period as
he and our Company may agree in writing.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time being
or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for
re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Tse Pui To (executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
(independent non-executive Director) will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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Training and support for Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2019, briefings and reading materials
had been provided and funded by our Company to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills (including but not limited to corporate
governance matters and any development or updates on the Listing
Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements) as their continuous
professional development so as to keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities and to emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, all Directors had participated in
the continuous professional development, by attending external seminars
or in-house trainings, and reading materials on various topics covering
regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, etc. Our
Company will also continuously update our Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices, and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code to monitor the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by our Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they all have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
to oversee the relevant aspects of our Group’s affairs. The three Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of our Company was established with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

During the year, the roles and functions of Audit Committee included:

(@ making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and other terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(o)  reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(c) developing and implementing policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(d)  monitoring the integrity of our Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, interim report, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

(e)  reviewing our Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

()  discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective systems;

(@ considering major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

(h)  reviewing our Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(i) reviewing our external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of risk management and
control and management’s response;

)} ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(k) reporting to the Board on the matters set out above;

BREES
ARRBEZZEGEKY - AREEMBERLE
Fa EmRA -

RER BRZERZABRBRERE

@ SIMNERBEMZEZE BELERZAE
FeRLEBES  HEINSZEEZ
BN R A B B ARTR - A KRR IB R A
A% B BF (LS AR BE 2 PR

b REREERILERIMNECHEMIE
BUEBALZERFESER

(© FLEREBIMNSEZBEN R HIFZBURTS B E
B AT AT

) EERARFZMBHRERARFHREEKR
NP HREZ BT - YEMRSE LR
B T8 B S IE R o A H T

@ BREARARZHBHEE BEREERA
ERESHEHIE -

EDTEHH}—“Z EE&W_LBQ_? %lj
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%a% TRUE Z B M

Mﬁhﬁ

Q EEFeZRATEFHEHEKRER
LA EEETE  EEHES %&Eﬁ
[E¥T B4R 2 B FEAETTI 5T

h) RARNEEZWERETBRARER

() HBINERBENG TEREZ(ERE)
FEAKE) - ZBEI g SRS Wﬁ%
B SR e I K BRI E M B R AR
ZEMEBREFEAREIEE ZOIE

() WREFCRELERINEZEAMEST
EREZ(BRBRHEREIPIREZ
£E:

K BEAEEMEESER:

EREEKREARAR
2019 F 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

;LII_/‘r/\—\

PEERME

() reviewing arrangements employees of our Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, risk management, internal control or other
matters as well as our whistleblowing policy;

(m) acting as the key representative body for overseeing our
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

(n)  considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities as required in
accordance with its terms of reference during the year ended 31 March
2019 and the major of which are stated as:

1. reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim results, annual
results and financial statements of our Company and of our Group
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments, and making
recommendation to the Board for approval;

2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and financial
policies and practices of our Company;

3. reviewing the interim report, annual report, and results
announcements of our Company;

4. considering and recommending to the Board for the re-
appointment of our Company’s independent external auditors;

5.  reviewing the connected transactions and discloseable
transactions; and

6. reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, and reviewing the works performed
by the independent internal control advisor, RSM Consulting (Hong
Kong) Limited (“RSM”), on the risk management and internal
control systems.

The members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Chan Siu Wing
Raymond (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, all of them are independent non-executive
Directors whereas Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, all the committee members have
met two times, with the attendance of our Company’s external auditor in
compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit Committee’s terms of
reference. The attendance of each member at these meetings are stated
as follows:

HZE2019F3A3IBILFE  2E8FEZEE
EHREERITMAEE (AR FIINEZEEE
KHE  TATRABRXEEZZESBESR
B) - SMERZEEZ L HERENT ¢

Attendance/
Number of Audit
Members of the Audit Committee Committee meetings held
HERE
EREEENE EREESERETRE
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHITES :
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
BRIk E (FEZEESTF/E)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 2/2
RIS k&
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 2/2
SREE kA

The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of this annual report.
The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed with the
management and the external auditor of our Company the matters
regarding the internal controls, risk management, and financial reporting
including the accounting principles and practices related to the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019, and recommended them to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering the
appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit services provided by our external auditor. During
the year, our Group has paid or payable to our external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the audit service in relation to the audit of
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 of HK$1,150,000 (2018: HK$1,050,000) and the non-audit service
in relation to the review of interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six-month ended 30 September 2018 of HK$250,000
(30 September 2017: HK$250,000), totalling HK$1,400,000 (2018:
HK$1,300,000) in aggregate. The Audit Committee considered that the
non-audit service has no adverse effect on the independence of the
auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(@)

)

making recommendations to the Board on our Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing Remuneration Policy;

reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in our Group;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee (i)
had reviewed the remuneration packages and bonus of executive
Directors and our Company’s senior management in relation to the terms
of their service agreements and in accordance with the written
remuneration policy of the Company (which had been reviewed during
the said year); (i) had assessed the performance of executive Directors
and the Company’s senior management; and (iii) had reviewed the
Group’s remuneration policy.
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Our Company has adopted and the Remuneration Committee has been
delegated with responsibility by the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the senior management of
our Company.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Chu Yat Pang
Terry (Chairman of Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cheung Kok
Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chan
Koung Nam, an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, all the committee members have

met two times. The attendance of each member at these meetings are
stated as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee
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Attendance/
Number of Remuneration
Committee meetings held

HERE,
FHEEERE FHNEESSRBITRH
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIFHITES:
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (Chairman of Remuneration Committee) 2/2
KWk E (FNEEeF/E)
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 2/2
REIE A&
Executive Directors:
BITES:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam 2/2
PR EA
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on ¥ PNE B € B fE &1 E 9 B AN 7] & B pr 4

the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

(@  reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement our Company’s corporate strategy;

(b)  identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(d)  making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

(e)  reviewing regularly the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy
of the Company to ensure the effectiveness of these policies and
reviewing any progress on achieving those objectives in these
policies.

The members of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Chan Kwong Yin
William, an executive Director and Chairman of the Board (Chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung
Kok Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to (i) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (i) review the re-appointment of retiring Directors at
the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company; (iii) review the
structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and determine the
policy; (iv) review the roles of the existing Directors and ascertain whether
any conflict of interests had been arisen for the Directors; and (v) review
the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy of the Company to
ensure their effectiveness.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held and all members had attended this meeting with
their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

HZE2019F3A31HILFE  EEEEeD
BIT—KNgE 2EKNBYEHERAESE
HESBZHELENT -

Attendance/
Number of Nomination
Committee meeting held

HERE
REZEENE REZEEERETAY
Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 1/1
MABRE(HEEZESTF/E)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 1/1
N i
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 11
SREE kA

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Nomination policy

The Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy” which governs the criteria,
procedures and process of nomination of Directors, so as to ensure that
the Board should (i) have a balance of skills and experience; (i) always
maintain the minimum number of independent non-executive Directors as
required under the Listing Rules; and (iii) ensure the independency of
those independent non-executive Directors.

When identifying, assessing and recommending suitable candidates for
directorship for the Board’s consideration, the Nomination Committee will
take into account our Company’s current needs and qualities needed for
the Board’s service, including but not limited to:

(@ his/her ethical, integrity and maturity characters, educational and
professional backgrounds, experience in money lending business
or other relevant industry, and expertise in that area;
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(b)  his/her willingness to devote the required amount of time to carrying
out the duties and responsibilities of the Board and various
committees’ membership for multiple terms. In this regards, the
numbers of offices held by the candidates in other public
companies or organisations, and other significant commitments,
etc. will be considered;

(c) any potential conflict of interest with the Group’s business and
assessment of the independence if he/she is appointed as
independent non-executive Directors; and

(d)  his/her willingness to comply with the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements in full for discharging his/her liabilities.

For those potential candidates who appear upon first consideration to
meet the above criteria, the Nomination Committee will conduct
appropriate inquiries and arrange for in-person meeting with such
candidates. Depending on the results of such inquiries and interview, the
Nomination Committee will propose this candidate to the Board for
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy”, which requires the
Nomination Committee of our Company to review annually the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board for
achieving diversity to our Board members, so as to enhance the quality
of our performance. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee has considered a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee will consider all the measurable objectives
that have been set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board as
selection criteria for potential candidate to the Board. The Company aims
to build and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are considered beneficial to the Company, and will
regularly review the progress on achieving those measurable objectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee have reviewed and will continue to review
this policy, as appropriate, and discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

Financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe as
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and Rule 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of our Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
which gives a true and fair view of our Group’s financial affairs for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of our Group is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.

Risk management and internal control

The maintenance of a sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems in our Group is important to safeguard our Shareholders’
investment and our Company’s assets.

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to oversee our Company’s risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and to
review their effectiveness at least annually. These systems are designated
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our business
objectives, and could only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, with the assistance from RSM, our Group has identified
and evaluated the relevant risks of our Group through a series of
interviews. During the risk identification and evaluation processes,
relevant risks were identified, evaluated and categorised into four
sections, namely financial, compliance, strategic and operational, and our
Group maintained a risk register to keep track of all identified risks which
provided to our Board, the Audit Committee and our management a
profile of those major and significant risks and a record of management’s
action taken to mitigate these risks. Each risk is evaluated at least
annually based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact to our
Group. This risk register is updated by our management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation and review
have been performed.
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During the year, the Board has appointed RSM to review and assess our
Group’s effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
and compliance controls, with a view to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualification and experience, training programmes and
budget of our accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
RSM had prepared the risk assessment report and internal control report
to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review, which covered all
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance and
strategical controls and risk management function and control of our
Group. Moreover, improvements in internal control system as
recommended by RSM to enhance the risk management and internal
control systems of our Group were also adopted by the Board. Based on
the review findings and recommendation of RSM as well as the
comments and suggestion of our Audit Committee, our Board considered
the risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

Function of internal audit

Currently our Group has no internal audit function. The Board has
discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of
the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of
our Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform our internal audit functions and to
review, at least annually, our risk management and internal control
systems. Although our Group did not establish internal audit function
during the year, the Board will continue to review a least annually the
need for the function of internal audit.

Inside information

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. Our Company has
adopted the inside information policy which aims to set out guidelines to
the Group’s directors, officers and all relevant employees to ensure inside
information (as defined below) of the Company is to be disseminated to
the public in an equal and timely manner in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations.

The term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group, because
of his office or employment, who is likely to be in possession of the
unpublished inside information (as defined below).
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Under the new Part XIVA of the SFO, inside information is the specific
information about the company, its shareholder or officer or its listed
securities or derivatives, which is not generally known to the persons who
are accustomed, or would be likely, to deal in the company’s listed
securities but would, if generally known to them, be likely to materially
affect the price of the company’s listed securities.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s inside information policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 March 2019, our Company Secretary
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with our Shareholders and other
stakeholders and encouraging them to communicate actively with our
Company.

This policy sets out the principles of our Company in relation to
Shareholders’” communications, with the objective of ensuring that the
communications with our Shareholders and other stakeholders (including
potential investors) with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about our Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments,
corporate governance and risk profile), in order to enable our
Shareholders and other stakeholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner mainly through our Company’s corporate
communications (such as interim reports and annual reports,
announcements and circulars, and notices of meetings), annual general
meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Announcements, interim reports, annual reports and circulars and
associated explanatory documents etc. are despatched to our
Shareholders and are also published on the websites of our Company
and of the Stock Exchange under a dedicated “Investor Relations”
section thereon as soon as practicable in plain language and in both
English and Chinese versions or where permitted, in single language, and
will be updated on a regular basis and in a timely manner.
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QOur Company’s website provides our Shareholders and other
stakeholders with the corporate information, such as our principal
business activities and products, the development of corporate
governance and the corporate social responsibilities of our Group, etc.

Our Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and effective communication with our Shareholders and
analysts by maximising the use of our Company’s website as a channel
to disclose our Company’s updated information and corporate
communications to our Shareholders, stakeholders and the public on a
timely basis. Our Company also encourages our Shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of our Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior
management.

Shareholders’ rights

1.  Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of our Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of our
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our
Company, shall at all times have the right to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the
Board.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of our Company at our principal place of
business in Hong Kong for the purpose of requiring an EGM of our
Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

Such EGM will be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If the requisition is in order, an EGM will be convenced by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements under the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.

ARREMmERR LMD ERHEEZR
BEBMES CEERZERMRAEEZ
CEHSEEFLAER -

ARRBEFTREERZHE - FEEAXR
NEBUIERBERRABKR  FHERAREE
ARAEHEMRARREAZRE  (RERE
ERENARERREANEBERER - AR
AR ERRAS  NEMAHASE
BEBzEM  LREFRSEEEER DR
FZBE-

IRER 2 R
1. BRREBMABRRBRIAEZERF

RIBARFMABEIZMANESSF - £
—RFINERERXZ2FEEBRFEERARF
BABRAK (MERARABRAEG ZRR
B)TIRT 22— 2R - BbERE
KEFEARBRERIAS (RREH
K&l e

FRAELBANEAATERELIRE
EWHANEESHARA ZARAMEE
b ABEREZEREREZ2FIHALZ
EREBARARABRRENAS

BERBRRENAREARZEZFREIEM
fEARETT -

HESEE - BREANRRMEEIZAN
AR EMRAZRERDEBRRE LT
DEAMEARBRRFERAE - HR - fid
EREY - HARRGEE AR
NI EEERBFHABRRFERIAE

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

34



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

%E/\m #&ﬂ:

Depending on the nature of the proposals, any EGM of our
Company at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered shall be called by notice of not less than twenty-one
clear days and not less than ten clear business days. All other EGM
of our Company may be called by notice of not less than fourteen
clear days and not less than ten clear business days (whereas the
notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed
to be served and of the day for which it is given), together with the
accompanying circular which also sets out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information as required under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries such as their shareholdings,
share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of
share certificates or dividend warrants, registration and payment of
dividend, etc. to our Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited:

Address : Suites 3301-04, 33/F.
Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road
North Point, Hong Kong

Email : info@unionregistrars.com.hk
Tel © (852) 2849 3399
Fax o (852) 2849 3319

Shareholders and other stakeholders may also raise enquiries in
respect of our Company’s matters in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address : Unit 3410, 34th Floor
Tower II, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Email : ir@hkfinance.com.hk
Tel : (852) 2525 3535
Fax : (852) 2525 3534
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

()

(i)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

Pursuant to Articles 83(2) and 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and the “Procedures for Shareholders to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director of the Company”,
which is available at our Company’s website, a Shareholder
who wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
should lodge:

(@  notice in writing signed by him/her concerned of his/her
intention to propose a candidate for election as a
Director which must include the personal particulars of
this nominated candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules; and

(b)  notice in writing signed by this nominated candidate to
be proposed indicating his/her willingness to be elected
and his/her consent to publish his/her information on
our Company’s announcement.

The above-mentioned notices should be lodged and
addressed to the Chairman of the Board or Chief Executive
Officer of our Company at our principal place of business in
Hong Kong, and the period for lodgment of these notices
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting and end no later than ten business
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for putting other forward proposals at general
meetings:

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general
meeting, Shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with their detailed contact information to our
Company Secretary at the principal place of business of our
Company in Hong Kong. The notice period to be given to all
Shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by the
Shareholders concerned at general meetings varies according
to the nature of the proposal.
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Constitutional Documents
During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no change in the
amended Articles of Association of our Company.

Our Company’s latest versions of Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association are available on the websites of our Company and
of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Dividend policy

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy to allow Shareholders to
participate in our Company’s profit whilst retaining adequate reserves for
our Company'’s future growth. Any distribution of dividends shall be in
accordance with the Articles of Association of our Company and with the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board may distribute dividends by
way of cash, shares, or by other means as the Board considers as
appropriate.

Profit distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability and
should take into account of (i) the earning per share of our Company; (i)
reasonable return in investment of the investors and the shareholders; (iii)
general financial conditions, cash flow situation, and business plan, future
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus of our
Company; (iv) any restrictions on payment of dividends by our Company’s
or the Group’s lenders; (v) the general market sentiment and
circumstances; and (vi) other factors the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will continue to review this policy as appropriate, and may
declare and distribute final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends from time to time.
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INTRODUCTION

Since the establishment of our Group for more than twenty years, our
Group is principally engaged in money lending business of providing
property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong. In October
2013, our Group was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and we are the first Hong Kong listed company specialising in property
mortgage with solid financial background and high transparency. We are
still focusing on our core business in property mortgage loans under our
well-known and highly recognised brand name “Hong Kong Finance”.
We also expanded our money lending business in personal loan products
in order to diversify ourselves in different money lending market
segments, to capture new market opportunity and to enhance our overall
interest margin.

We aim to provide “professional, reliable and flexible” mortgage services
to our customers. Our experienced mortgage managers provide
customised, property-pledged mortgage solutions based on the specific
needs of customers. In order to build a harmonious community, our
Group strives to maintain a sustainable business and contribute to the
society.

Sustainable development is an integral part of our business strategy in
order to achieve business excellence and enhance capabilities for long-
term competitiveness. Our Group is committed to maintaining our
operation in manner that is economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable while balancing the interests of our various stakeholders and
foster a positive impact on the society. Our sustainability strategy is
based on the compliance with the applicable legal requirements, principle
of sustainability and opinions from stakeholders. We have established
and implemented various policies to manage and monitor the risks
related to the environment, employment, operating practices and
community. Details of the management approaches to sustainable
development of different areas are illustrated in this environmental, social
and governance report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will
invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes within
the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the potential to
be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities, products, services
and relationships. It allows the Group to understand risks and
opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s roles
and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group engages
with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial relationships and to
seek their views on its business proposals and initiatives as well as to
promote sustainability in the marketplace, workplace, community and
environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s
business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to our business and established various channels for
communication. The following table provides an overview of the Group’s
key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of communication
are used to reach, listen and respond.

Stakeholders Issues of concern

& SR

Government and ° Comply with the applicable laws and
regulatory regulations
authorities ° Proper tax payment

° Promote regional economic
development and employment
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Engagement channels

EERE
° On-site inspections and checks
° Research and discussion through work
conferences, work reports preparation
and submission for approval
o Annual reports and announcements
° Website of the Company

o  EitiRRERE

o  EBTFEH WEIIFHRERE
R E R M A ®

o FHmEDM

o ARRAIHEG
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
B & AEEE EERE
Shareholders and ° Return on the investment ° Annual general meeting and other
Investors ° Information disclosure and transparency shareholder meetings
° Protection of interests and fair treatment o Annual reports and announcements
of shareholders ° Newsletter
° Meeting with investors and analysts
° Websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange
o Company contact information
RRRIREE e  KREMOHK e RRBAFAGIRHAMKRRAS
o EBHBRENEHE o FHRRAM
o IREREMNZRA TS e  HHEW
e HEEREERSESR
o RN EHEuh A P AR
e ARDEEEHER
Employees ° Safeguard the rights and interests of ° Meetings and conferences
employees o Trainings, seminars, briefing sessions
° Working environment o Labour union
° Career development opportunities o Entertainment, cultural and sport
o Self-actualisation activities
° Occupational health and safety ° Feedback box
o Staff remuneration, benefits and well-
being
-1 o [RISESRENKER e THKEZ
e TI{EIRE o il ARG REN S
s EETREME e I®
e BHER e RE (LBEEH
e BXEERETE e BRIk
o BB - BA LB
Customers ° Safe and high-quality products ° Email and customer service hotline
° Stable relationship o Visits and meetings
° Information transparency
° Business ethics
EF s AAEREBEER o  EBREPRBEER
s  REMBRK e EakgmE
e  EHEHR
o  HXER
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Stakeholders
HHE

Banks

Issues of concern

BEXEE

To repay loans on schedule, monitor
operating conditions and risks and
operate with honesty and credibility

;RET1E 'ﬂ/\TA JIEL‘_R'L‘ éﬂj{/ﬂ:&ﬂ
WIABAE 7 L&

Engagement channels

BI§RE

Work conferences,

On-site visits, post-loan tracking and

various business communication

IME = uﬁé

BiansE  BREMEEREER

G

Financial Institution

Compliance with the applicable law and
regulations

Financial Institution

BT IS M E o  HETTHEHREERER o BITGHEE
Peers/Industry ° Experience sharing and cooperation ° Industry conference and seminars
Associations ° Fair competition ° Site visit
EEVETES - s  REHZFHEE e  TEgRLMFE
. NEFRF . Eiﬂléﬁﬁ
Media ° Transparent information o Media
g e EHNEHR o HiE
Public and ° Community involvement o Volunteering
Communities ° Social responsibilities o Village visiting
o Charity and social investment
DPBATRHE o HE%E o ETRH
s HEBARE o HHLIRED
e ZHERMEKRE

BREAKEERAT
201954k

41




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRE = NEIRWRS

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in this reporting by
understanding the key environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”)
issues that are important to the business of the Group. All the key ESG
issues and key performance indicators (the “KPIs”) are reported in the
Report according to recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide and
the Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

° Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant
ESG reports of the local and international industry peers.

° The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on the
important of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide.

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

o The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

° Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of the above processes, those important ESG areas to the
Group were discussed in this Report.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group is mainly involved in office operations and its business
activities do not have significant impact on the environment or
natural resources. In spite of this, as a financial services provider,
we recognise that we have an obligation to reduce the impact of
our operations on the environment and be accountable for the
resources and materials that are used in our daily operations. We
are committed to continuously improving our environmental
sustainability by responsibly managing our operation, reducing our
carbon footprint and using resources effectively.

Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong, such as
the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 358), the Sewage Services Ordinance
(Cap. 463) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354). Besides,
no concluded cases regarding environmental issues were brought
against us or our employees. We also regularly update ourselves
with the latest development of the applicable laws and regulations
on environmental protection.

Apart from complying with the environmental protection rules and
standards, the Group emphasises environmental protection and
seeks ways to enhance efficiency in the use of natural resources
and reduce the environmental impact of its business operation. We
take the initiative to formulate and implement the “Corporate
Environmental Policy” to establish relevant emissions reduction and
energy saving initiatives internal policies and campaigns to facilitate
the effective use of natural resources and eco-friendly operation.
We also encourage employees to build up environmentally friendly
habits through notice and promotion to save resources and
minimise pollution.

BRESH
AEETIENHATETEBAERE
PHRFEIRNRERL BEAFZE - &
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A1,

Emissions

Air Pollutant Emissions

Air pollutant emissions control is essential to mitigate the
impact on the environment and to protect the health of
employees. As the Group is mainly involved in general office
activities, the amount of air pollutant emissions is insignificant.
Our air pollutant emissions are mainly generated from the
mobile sources. We take initiative to formulate plans in
transportation management for the reduction of air pollutant
emissions in our daily business operation, for example
encouraging employees and clients to take video conference
instead of unnecessary transportation. The slight decrease in
air pollutant emissions in the current year was mainly
attributable to the effective implementation of transportation
management measures for reducing vehicle use during the
year.

The details of air pollutant emissions of the Group during the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

Al.

PR
ZRB RPN
2 ZE RS RMBER TR E S IRE
TEMERERREZER -
R mRAKBEEIZS R KM
ERY WERSEAMERER
W BAZERSADEREER
BEFR - ZMATSHHEBER
8 R AEEBP 2ZE=RS
RO s B E B ME PR
RAREERIE T BRIBLH -
RERZERSRMFBREEMT
- TEARNFRERERABE
B - OB E AR

RE Z22019F 20183 A31H
WHFE  REBETERTLYBENG
BT

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

Type of Air Pollutant Unit 2019 2018
ZERISRYER B 2019 2018
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg 8.88 9.52
Aa/¥(NO,) N

Sulphur dioxide (SO,) kg 0.15 0.16
Z &1L (SO Nan .
Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.65 0.70
FBZRLTF (PM) N

Greenhouse Gas (the “GHG”) Emission

GHG is considered as one of the major contributors to the
climate change and global warming. The Group recognises
that climate change is gradually concerned by the community
as it affects our daily life and poses a risk to its business.
Hence, we are committed to mitigating the effects of climate
change and to protecting the health of employees.
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The major sources of our GHG emission are the fuel used by
vehicles and indirect emission through electricity consumption
for our office operation. The Group strives to improve energy
efficiency and reduce energy consumption so as to minimise
GHG emission by adopting energy saving initiatives
mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of this ESG
Report. During the current year, the slight decrease in GHG
Scope 1 emission was mainly attributable to the effective
implementation of transportation management measures for
reducing vehicle use during the year. The increase in GHG
Scope 2 emission was mainly due to the new personal loans
business which required more electricity consumed for our

office during the year.

The details of GHG emission of the Group during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

BRAZAERBHNEIEREE
PR RSB B N E L EREEM
RPN - RPN BBRMAARIR
B-HeEREARENERER]
— PP AL BT BEFE B - IR S AR IR AN AR
PO RERBER - (EMBEER AR
EREHW - RAFE - RERE
HE1ZHREEMTRE T2H
RERNERERBELER - U
M ERER - REREBHE22
BEREEN - TEHNMELAE
AEBEHFARLEREENE
hm e

REE2019F 201843 A31H
WHFE - REBEEREDENEES
s

For the year ended 31 March
BE3ASIALEE

Type of GHG Emission Unit 2019 2018
BEREHERER By 2019 F 20184
Scope 1' tonnes of CO.e 26.94 28.96
FE 1 M-—ftixEs
Scope 22 tonnes of CO.,e 37.09 36.19
3 [F] 22 W_S(tixE=
Total GHG emission tonnes of CO.e 64.03 65.15
BERBEENE M iR E =
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO.e/area in sq. ft. 0.02 0.02

BERBHNEE

WE—AMLIREE

BT ARREE
Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by our 1 EE
Group. B e
Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity 2 &[E 2

consumed by our Group.

PERR -

CREAREEES SRS HR 2 B
CREEEREEMABARN ZEE

EREEKREARAR
2019 F 45



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRE = NEIRWRS

46

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Waste management is considered as one of the material
topics in environmental protection. The Group recognises the
importance of waste reduction. Waste management
measures have been introduced and implemented to
minimise the amount of waste generated and the impact on
the environment. With our business nature, no hazardous
waste is generated or discharged during the office operation.

For non-hazardous waste, the waste is mainly generated
from daily office operation. The Group takes initiative to
reduce waste by formulating effective measures. Generally,
we have engaged qualified recycling companies to collect
and handle the waste in accordance to the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354) in Hong Kong. The major source of our
non-hazardous waste is paper waste.

With the aim to reduce the amount of waste generated, the
Group endeavours to cultivate environmental awareness
among employees. In order to reduce the paper
consumption, we encourage our employees to consider
environmental-friendly printing such as double-sided printing
and copying. We also encourage employees to reuse single
sided non-confidential print out. The waste paper is re-used
as fillers for packing when practicable.

On top of that, the Group actively promotes electronic
communication such as emails to reduce the amount of
paper used. In addition to paper saving, we also encourage
employees to reuse stationery such as envelopes and use
reusable items such as reusable cutleries and cups. All these
measures are geared at reducing waste such as paper waste
which can help mitigate the global greenhouse effect as well.
Recycling bags are available for paper collection. All paper
boxes, paper, newspaper and magazines are collected for
recycling purpose.
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The details of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group during REZ20194F k20183 A31H
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 was as follows: IEFE  AXEEMEEEEEREY
FHBWT ¢

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3AHALEE

Type of Wastes Disposal Unit 2019 2018

EEEEYER By 2019 2018 F

Non-hazardous waste tonnes 5.48 N/A3

BmEERY A

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee 0.14 N/A3

BEREVTE W 1E 8

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, non-hazardous REZ2019F & 2018F 3 A31H

waste recycled by the Group was as follows: IEFE - REBEFRIKEEREZEY
BRIT

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

Type of Wastes Recycled Unit 2019 2018
1= L B 22 D 3 By 20194 2018 &
Paper recycled tonnes 0.65 N/A3
[B] U 48 5= Mg
Paper recycled intensity tonnes/employee 0.02 N/A3
[B] I 4 5K 7 Ly =

3 “N/A” refers to “not available”. The amounts were not available for the year 8 [N/A] #8 T# XS | - MELZ 20184 3 A 31
ended 31 March 2018. HIEFEREESEREE -
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A2.

Use of Resources

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. We
have an in-depth understanding of the importance of
safeguarding sustainable development of the environment
and this to attach importance to efficient utilisation of
resources by introducing various measures in daily office
operation. We understand that staff participation is the key to
achieve such goals. We strive to build up a working
environment that emphasises the “green office” policy such
as a set of guidelines to improve the efficient use of resources
for long-term sustainability. We also motivate our employees
to participate in resources conservation activities to promote
resources saving.

Energy Consumption

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. With
aims of resource saving and implementation of energy saving
measures, we actively promote the concept of energy saving
and emission reduction into the entire process of its business
development and operation and implements different energy
saving measures.

Regarding energy consumption of the Group, petrol and
purchased electricity mainly result from fuel used by vehicles
and premises operation respectively. The Group endeavours
to reduce the energy consumption by advocating various
energy conservation strategies. For examples, we choose to
use power-saving facilities and reduce the number of
equipment used. Computers are switched to energy-saving
mode when they are not in use for a long period of time. Al
power supply in the area is switched off while idle. Besides,
the temperature of air-conditioners is maintained at an
energy-efficient level to reduce the energy consumption.
Energy conservation reminders are placed to increase
employees’ awareness of energy saving. We will consistently
seek ways to improve energy efficiency and reduce energy
consumption in our facilities in the future. The slight decrease
in petrol consumption during the current year was mainly
attributable to the effective implementation of transportation
management measures for reducing vehicle use during the
current year. The increase in electricity consumption in the
current year was mainly due to the new personal loans
business which required more electricity consumed for our
office.
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IHFEE . AEBREREAFBD

The details of energy consumption of the Group during the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

T

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3AHALEE

Type of Energy Unit 2019 2018
REIR 3 A B 2019 2018 &
Purchased electricity MWh 46.36 45.82
BAES KBS
Petrol MWh 88.43 95.06
UH JKELBF
Total energy consumption MWh 134.79 140.88
REREES JKFL B
Energy intensity MWh/area in sq. ft. 0.03 0.04

BEREE KRR,/ &F 75 REE

Water Consumption

Water is another important resource used for the daily
operation. The business of our Group is operated in office
premises where water supply is solely controlled and centrally
managed by its respective property management of the
buildings. In this case, it is not feasible for the Group to
provide all relevant water consumption data as there is no
separate meter for the individual office unit to record water
usage. In spite of this, we strive to prevent unnecessary water
consumption by promptly reporting to the relevant
department in case of leaking faucet. We also actively raise
employees’ awareness of water saving through green office
policy such as reminding employees to turn faucet off tightly
and conducting regular inspection and maintenance of water
facilities.
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s two main operating segments: (i) property
mortgage loans and (i) personal loans have no significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.
Notwithstanding, we continue to enhance the environmental
awareness of our employees, customers, shareholders and
business partners and enlist their supports in improving our
environmental performance. With the integration of policies
and measures to reduce air pollutants and GHG emissions,
waste generation and resources consumption, we strive to
enhance environmental sustainability and minimise our
impacts on the environment. We will review our environmental
policy from time to time and will consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures and practices in order to
enhance environmental sustainability.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

50

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

B1.

Employment

The Group believes people are our most important asset to
the continuing development and success of our Group. As
such, we aim to attract and motivate talents, maintain a safe
and equal working environment and promote health and well-
being of our employees. We pay special attention to our
employees’ rights and strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap.
608), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) and other relevant regulations in Hong Kong. The staff
handbook covers our Group’s standard in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

The Group strives to construct a diverse and inclusive
workplace where all our employees are treated with dignity
and respect. We strongly oppose to all discriminatory
behaviours against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, race, colour, disability, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, marital status or family status. The principle of
equal opportunities is applied in all employment practices,
including but not limited to recruitment, promotion and
transfer, work allocation, benefits and training and
development.
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The Group has formulated competitive remuneration
packages to retain and motivate employees in achieving key
goals of our Group. We provide remuneration for its
employees according to their qualifications, experience,
performance, job duties and service years as well as to the
market benchmark. We perform salary review on an annual
basis to ensure its remuneration practices are competitive
and aligned with market rate. In addition to salary, we provide
mandatory provident fund, allowances, required social
security benefits, medical benefits and variable incentive-
based remuneration such as discretionary bonus to our
employees. Employees are also entitled to various types of
leave including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave and
paternity leave.

The Group acknowledges the importance of work-life balance
and strives to maintain a supportive and relaxing working
environment for our employees. We organise activities such
as annual dinner for employees to relax and to strengthen
their sense of belongings. In addition to those specified in the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), we provide paid or partially
paid leaves and support services or activities for our
employees to handle urgent personal and family matters. We
also provide family care and supports to our employees and/
or their family members to bring a positive impact on their
family life. We are committed to building a pleasant working
environment to enhance the happiness of our employees.
Our principal subsidiary, Hong Kong Finance has received the
“Happy Company” 2018 logo issued by the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation and the Hong Kong Productivity
Council as an encouragement for our commitment to create
a happy workplace for our employees.

During the current year, our Group was no aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits and welfare. Any changes of employment
terms will be notified to staff and agreed in writing to protect
the lawful rights and interests of all employees.
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As at 31 March 2019, the employee compositions (in
numbers of employees) by gender, employee category, age
group and geographical region are as follows:

Aged 51 or above

R20195E3A31H - IR - &
BRI - FirARI RMEE D 2B
BHAKBER(ZREEAHBGE) W
I

S1EREA I
Female 7 Aged iO or below
21 30N T
20 9
Aged 41—
Gender 2%%50 %O Age Group
22 12 Fe4a R
Male
el
20
Aged 31-40
31Z2408B%
12
Senior management
RN ERE
8
General
EiEES
20 Employee Geographical
Category Region

EEEA

Middle management
PAREIRE
12

E

Hong Kong
&
40
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The employee turnover rates by gender, age group and MR201963A31H » RMER| - &
geographical region as at 31 March 2019 are as follows: BRAR R E D ZIREBRALL R
mT

Employment Unit Turnover rate (%)

EE By TKREEZE (%)

By gender

BRI RIE 2

° Male % 23
S

° Female % 36
egi

By age group

BRERARE S

° 30 or below % 45
30BRBIAT

o 31-40 % 34
31 £ 405%

o 41-50 % 26
41 £ 505%

o 51 or above % -
518 A

Overall % 33

att
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to
establish a healthy and safe working environment for its
employees. We place the highest priority on securing the
health and safety of all employees. In order to ensuring
occupational health and safety of our employees, we strictly
comply with the rules and guidelines stipulated in the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) by the
Labour Department in Hong Kong and any other applicable
laws and regulations.

Besides, with the aim to provide and maintain a safe and
healthy working environment for employees, the Group
implements “Occupational Safety and Health Policy” to
protect them from work-related injury. We support a culture
that enhances the health and safety awareness of our
employees in order to minimise the risk of work-related injury.
We also provide medical benefits for our employees and
establish work arrangement for typhoon and rainstorm
warning. Besides, we place great emphasis on the
employees’ mental wellness. We provide information and
services regarding stress management and mental wellness
counselling for our employees to relieve stress and to
promote mental wellness.

During the current year, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
had significant impact on our Group in providing a safe and
healthy working environment.
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B3. Development and Training
The Group believes that knowledges and skills of our
employees are vital to our continued business growth and
success. We have established a “Staff Training and
Development Policy” to support our employees in the
performance of their designated roles and help them to fulfill
their potential during the course of their employment. We
provide diversified on-the-job trainings for our employees and
continue to improve the training system in order to enhance
their requisite knowledges and skills in discharging their
duties. During the current year, the detailed breakdown of the
average training hours completed by each employee is as

B3. R KIEI
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follows:
Average training Percentage of
hours (hours/ employee trained
Training employee) (%)
P15 B B FiEERDL
sy (hE§ER) (%)
By gender
Qe E-B)
° Male 1 42
S
By employee category
RESER &S
° Senior management 4 50
BREEE
° Middle management 4 33
FREEE

B4. Labour Standards
The Group respects the human rights of employees, and is
strongly against the employment of child labour and forced
labour. We strictly emphasise on the prohibition of engaging
child labour and forced labour. Adhering to the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57) and the Employment of Children
Regulations in Hong Kong, we strictly prohibit recruitment of
individuals under the age of 15. According to our “Human
Resources Policy Guidelines”, job applicants are required to
present their identity documents for age verification during
recruitment process.
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The Group is committed to respecting the freedom of
employees and prohibiting all forms of forced labour. All work
should be performed on a voluntary basis and the working
hours are regulated in the staff handbook.

During the current year, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to
recruitment of child labour or forced labour practices.

OPERATING PRACTICES

BS.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

As a financial services provider, the Group mainly works with
third party services providers which provide services such as
information technology service, property management
service, advertising service and legal and consulting service.
We also work with suppliers that supply office equipment,
printing and stationery. During the primary engagement
process, we select more than one supplier for comparison
purpose and to ensure fair selection. With the implementation
of our “Environmental Procurement Policy”, we strive to
minimise our impacts on the environment by supporting and
giving priority to purchase recycled and environmental-friendly
products.

Product Responsibility

The Group regards service quality as a key competitive
advantage of its business. We continue to provide high-
quality services in order to enhance customer satisfaction.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Cap. 163), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486),
the Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362) and the
Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) in Hong Kong. During the
current year, our Group was not aware of any non-
compliance regarding product responsibility.

Quality Management

The Group has implemented a “Quality Management Policy”
to ensure the continual delivery of high-quality services to our
customers. We continuously provide value-added features on
our websites, such as mortgage calculator, online property
valuation and online loan application, aiming to offer excellent
customer experience and surpass customers’ expectations
where possible.
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The Group believes the opinions from customers can drive
our continuous improvement and are essential to our pursuit
for excellence. We welcome the opinions from customers by
establishing various communication channels with customers,
such as customer service hotline, email, WhatsApp, WeChat
and Facebook. We have also established a customer service
survey form on our website to understand the needs of our
customers and improve our service quality.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy

The Group acknowledges that data privacy is a critical issue
for financial services industry and we place great importance
on the data protection of our customers. We adhere to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) in Hong Kong
and take high precaution in ensuring data confidentiality to
avoid misuse or leakage of personal data. The confidential
personal data is handled with due care and kept in a locked
cabinet. We have incorporated our requirements into staff
handbook and requires employees to abide by the guidance
on prohibiting any unauthorised disclosure of confidential
information. In addition, we have included the purpose of
personal data collection in the loan application form to ensure
our customers are aware of it.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to upholding the high standards of
business ethics and integrity in the conduct of our Group’s
business and operation. We strictly comply with all applicable
laws and regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) in Hong Kong. Our standards towards
anti-corruption and business ethics, incorporated into the
staff handbook, are communicated and reinforced to our
employees. Employees shall not solicit or accept any forms of
bribing benefits, including banquets, cash, gifts, rebates and
commissions. If any case of suspected corruption or other
criminal offence is discovered, it will be reported to the
Independent Commission Against Corruption or other
relevant authorities.

The Group aims to avoid being directly or indirectly involved
in corrupt practices. Hence, we have established a “Guideline
on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing”,
which covers procedures for customer due diligence and
reporting suspicious transaction, to prevent and detect any
money laundering and terrorist financing.
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Customer Due Diligence

Prior to accepting customers’ loan application, the Group
carries out Know-Your-Client procedures to verify the identity
of customers and assess the risks associated with the
customers by using documents, data and information
obtained from reliable and independent sources, such as
government and public authorities. We verify the identity of
individual customers by inspecting their Hong Kong Identity
Cards and proofs of residential address. For corporate
customers, we verify their identity by inspecting their
Certificates of Incorporation and/or Business Registration
Certificates. For the individual who is acting on the authority
of the customer, we will also verify his/her identity and
examine whether he/she has the authority to act for that
customer.

In addition, the Group conducts checking on land register to
verify the ownership of the properties and ascertain whether
the properties are under any charges. For body corporate
customers, we enquire the ownership structures of the body
corporate. We do not allow anonymous customer account to
be set up, and all loan repayments from customers are made
by cheques with their own bank accounts and payable to us
or our solicitors.

Suspicious Transactions Reporting

Upon any suspected or confirmed case of property
representing the proceeds of crime or terrorist property,
employees are required to immediately report to the Group’s
top management in accordance with our internal guideline.
The Group will promptly report the suspicious transactions to
the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit* using the standard form
or e-channel “STREAMS”.

During the current year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. There was no legal case
regarding corruption practices brought against our Group
during the current year.

Joint Financial Intelligence Unit is a unit jointly operated by the Hong Kong
Police Force and the Hong Kong Customs and Excise Department. Its role
is to receive, analyse and store suspicious transactions reports and to
disseminate them to the appropriate investigative unit.
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B8. HERE

B8. Community Investment

As a socially responsible corporate citizen, the Group strives
to contribute back to the society and bring a positive impact
on the community. A “Community Involvement Policy” is in
place to encourage and support community development
initiatives. Our principal subsidiary, HK Finance has been
awarded the “Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for five consecutive years in
recognition of our contribution to society and serving of the
community by donating to different institutions.

Our Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility by
investing in the communities. During the current year, the
Group made donations to various charitable organisations,
including:

° Wai Yin Association
° Hong Kong Children Foundation
° Yan Chai Hospital

In addition, the Group encourages its employees to dedicate
their time and skills to participate in different voluntary
activities and be aware of community needs. We also
encourage our employees, customers and business partners
to make donations in supporting the sustainable development
of the community.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koung Nam (BR ¥ R8), aged 63, is our executive Director who
was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also acting as directors
of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Kwong Yin William and one of the founders of our Group. Mr. Chan has
over twenty years of experience in money lending business and is
responsible for the strategic planning and overall development of our
Group.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares or any other associated corporation” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or short positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” respectively.

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (B &), aged 54, is our executive
Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also
acting as directors of various subsidiaries of our Company and is the
Chairman of the Board. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and
one of the founders of our Group. He has over twenty years of experience
in money lending business and is responsible for overseeing our Group’s
business operation and development as well as monitoring our Group’s
corporate strategy and administration. Mr. Chan also supervises the
formulation of our Group’s marketing strategy and the execution of the
relevant marketing programs.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares or any other associated corporation” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or short positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” respectively.

Mr. Tse Pui To (#1%38), aged 53, is our executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Tse
joined our Group in 2002 and is responsible for managing our Group’s
business operation with focus on our mortgage loan sales, aftersales
activities and other administrative functions. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as and held senior positions in various financial institutions. Mr.
Tse possesses extensive experience in corporate finance activities and
business promotions.
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EFNEREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (B Jk &), aged 54, is our independent
non-executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013.
Currently Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive directors of each of
Nature Home Holding Company Limited (stock code: 2083) and Quali-
Smart Holdings Limited (stock code: 1348), the shares of these two
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Phoenitron Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8066), the shares of which are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan resigned as an independent non-executive director of National
Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 31
March 2016.

Mr. Chan possesses over twenty-five years of experience in the
profession of accounting, taxation, finance and trust. He obtained a
bachelor of economics degree from the University of Sydney. Mr. Chan is
a member of both HKICPA and the Macau Society of Certified Practising
Accountants.

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (5:#M8), aged 47, is our independent non-
executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Currently
Mr. Chu is an independent non-executive directors of each of Ten Pao
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1979) and AB Builders Group
Limited (stock code: 1615), the shares of these two companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also a managing director
of Halcyon Capital Limited which specialises in initial public offerings and
corporate advisory in mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Chu possesses over twenty years of experience in corporate finance
and auditing. He used to work for an international accounting firm and
other corporate finance arms of listed financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada
with a bachelor of arts degree and from The University of Hull in the
United Kingdom with a master of business administration (investment
and finance) degree. He also obtained a diploma in accounting from the
School of Business and Economics of the Wilfrid Laurier University in
Canada. Mr. Chu is a member of HKICPA.
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Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong (Bl &), aged 61, is our independent non-
executive Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Cheung
is also a practicing solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1993.
Currently he is a partner of S.H. Chan & Co., a solicitors’ firm in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of
Hong Kong and a bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
He was thereafter awarded the postgraduate certificate in laws by the
University of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hui Chun Ho Eric (FF£%), aged 44, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of our Group. Mr. Hui joined our Group in 2012 and
is responsible for the overall financial accounting and reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of our Group.

Mr. Hui possesses over twenty years of experience in auditing, financial
accounting and reporting, company secretarial matters and corporate
finance matters. Prior to joining our Group, he worked for an international
accounting firm and held several senior positions in other listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Hui is a fellow member of both The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and HKICPA, and an associate of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a master of business
administration with distinction from The University of Manchester, United
Kingdom.

Mr. Chan Siu Fai (FR2>#&), aged 56, is the Senior Mortgage Sales
Manager of our Group. Mr. Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is
responsible for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit
assessment of our Group’s lending business.

Mr. Choi Tak On Jobby (8f£%), aged 50, is the Senior Mortgage Sales
Manager of our Group. Mr. Choi joined our Group in 2005 and is
responsible for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit
assessment of our Group’s lending business.
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Our Directors are pleased to present the report of the directors together
with the audited financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of our subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of our
Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS
The results of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income”.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of our Company will be held on Tuesday, 3
September 2019 (the “AGM”). The notice of AGM, which constitutes part
of the circular to the Shareholders, will be published on the websites of
our Company and of the Stock Exchange, and despatched to our
Shareholders together with our Company’s 2019 annual report in due
course.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK1.2 cents per Share for the six months ended
30 September 2018 had been paid to our Shareholders on 17 January
2019. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.3
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2019, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the AGM. The proposed final dividend will be
paid on Wednesday, 9 October 2019.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods, and no transfers of shares of the Company will be
effected during such periods:

(i) from Thursday, 29 August 2019 to Tuesday, 3 September 2019,
both days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of ordinary shares of the
Company, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Union Registrars Limited (the
“Branch Share Registrar”), at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 28
August 2019; and
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(i) on Wednesday, 11 September 2019 and Thursday, 12 September
2019, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend. In order to establish entitlements to the
proposed final dividend, all transfers of ordinary shares of the
Company, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Branch Registrar at the address set out
above for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 10
September 2019.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by our Group during the year
amounted to HK$81,000 (2018: HK$215,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of our business review as at 31 March 2019 are set out in the
preceding section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
Details of our principal properties held for investment purposes are set
out in the section headed “Schedule of Investment Properties”.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR
Details of the share issued in the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in Note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of our Company at 31 March 2019, calculated
under the legislation applicable in Company’s place of incorporation,
amounted to HK$363,023,000 (2018: HK$361,741,000) before the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share options granted at 31 March 2019 is set out in Note
28 to the financial statements and in this section headed “Share Option
Scheme”. No share options were granted during the year. For the share
options outstanding, no shares were issued during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group for
the last five financial years are set out in the section headed “Five-year
Financial Summary”.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
those participants who made contributions to our Group with a view to
motivating them and/or attracting and retaining them for the long term
growth of our Group. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any Director (whether
executive or non-executive or independent non-executive), employee
(whether full time or part time), officer, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or any entity in
which our Company or any subsidiary holds any interest whom the Board
determines on the basis of contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of our Group.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of an
option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a business date; (b) the average
closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of our
Company.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.

The total number of shares of our Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (exclusive of options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of our Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders.
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Our Company may seek approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit set out hereinabove such that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval to
refresh such limit. Share options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such limit as refreshed.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares as
equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No option may be
granted under this Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of our Company if it would result in the above-mentioned 30%
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued shares for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board to each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No further
options may be granted more than 10 years after 4 September 2013.

Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 4 September 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no option had been granted or
agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. As at 31
March 2019, 18,800,000 share options were still outstanding, which
represents approximately 4.5% of the issued ordinary shares of our
Company.
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EEEWmE
Details of the share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme #2019 3 A 31 H 2 B RREsF 2118 % k1T
as at 31 March 2019, are as follows: FEEARERTIB AT ¢
Number of options ('000)
BREHE (Th)
Exercise
As at Exercised Lapsed As at price
31 March during during 31 March per share Exercisable Exercisable
Participant 25% 2018 the year the year 2019 HKS  from until
R2018%F R20198  SKRITHEE BUTHE EZNTARE
3A31H ERTE ERAH 3A31H (Br) WiTfE Ckix:d
Executive Directors HTES
Chan Koung Nam e 1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
201564818 202043A318
1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
0164818 202043A318
1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020
2017%4R1H 2020%3A31H
Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam (R} & 1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
0154818 202043A318
1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
2016 4R 1H 2020%3A31H
1,000 - - 1,000 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020
2017%4R18 202053 A31H
Tse Pui To HigE 867 - - 867 0.89 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
0154818 202043A318
867 - - 867 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
2016%4A1H 2020%3A31H
866 - - 866 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020
017F4A18  202043A318
Continuous contract BESHN 3,402 - - 3,402 0.89 1 April 2015 31 March 2020
employees kg 20155418 202053 A31H
3,402 - - 3,402 0.89 1 April 2016 31 March 2020
2016%4A1H 202053 A31H
3,39 - - 3,396 0.89 1 April 2017 31 March 2020
01764818 2020%3A318
Total ay 18,800 - - 18,800
BEGEEEEBRLT
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of our Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Koung Nam

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of our Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-
election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Tse Pui To (Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond
(Independent Non-Executive Director) will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

Our Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
March 2019 and up to the date of this Directors’ Report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
our Company for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than three months prior written
notice or otherwise in accordance with the service agreement. Each of
the executive Directors will receive a monthly salary subject to annual
review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Board. Each
of the executive Directors is also entitled to a discretionary bonus as may
be determined by the Board and the remuneration committee of the
Board after each completed year of service provided that the aggregate
amount of discretionary bonuses payable in each financial year to all
executive Directors shall not exceed five per cent of the audited
consolidated net profit attributable to owners of our Company but before
extraordinary or exceptional items of the relevant financial year. Each of
the executive Directors is also entitled to a guaranteed bonus which is
equivalent to one-month salary.

Our Group has provided a quarter located in Hong Kong to an executive
Director, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William as part of the remuneration of his
directorship in our Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with our Company for an initial term of two years and may
be terminated by not less than three months (save for the notice period
which is one month for Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond) prior written notice
or otherwise in accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The
annual fees payable by our Company to the independent non-executive
Directors is an aggregate amount according to the letters of appointment.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of our Company has a service contract with
period unexpired with our Company which is not determinable by our
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Option Scheme above, at no time during
the year was our Company, nor any of our subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or our parent company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of our Company or any other body corporate; and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of our Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO OUR
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which our Company, any
of our subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or our parent company was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any business
which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete with the
business of our Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director of our
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of our Company from and against any liability
incurred by them or any one of them as holder of any such office or
appointment to a third party.

A permitted indemnity provision is in force as at the date of this report
and was in force throughout the year for the benefit of all the Directors
pursuant to the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance arranged by our
Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
in the preceding section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company, which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
during the reporting period:

Name of Director Details of change
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Chu Yat Pang Terry e Appointed as an independent non-executive director of AB Builders Group
Kirlls Limited (stock code: 1615), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 17 August 2018.

BUIHHTEE BEERRABREEEBER DA (ZA RN EB R IER B/ - BROKE -

1615) 2B FIEMITES - B2018F 8 A 17 BREERK ©

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and/or short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of our Company in the shares and
underlying shares of our Company and our associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were (i) recorded in the
register kept by our Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (i)
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

EERBETHRAEBRROKRMEBER
DREMEMAREE 2 EER R
KB

MR2019F3A31H KRB ZEERE=TT
BRABRARRREMABZE(TEAEFR
HRERBIZEXVER) 2 I R % %A () 1R
BES N EIENEIBIERERRTBRFLZ
ZoMETactr S KL AR ¢ (i) IRIEE
H B IEBIEXV IS 7 8 7 BRI R AIZHEST
AlZ B FEHNEARARE MBS N5
KEWT

RART 2 (FR)

Number of Shares and
underlying shares held ('000)
FisERoREBROEE (TR)

Total
Interest in a (% of the issued
Shares/ Beneficial controlled share capital
Name of Directors Equity derivatives owner corporation of the Company)
e
7, REZEH (AR QBE BT
5L RETETR BERERA EERER RAz2BDLL)
Chan Koung Nam (i) Ordinary shares - 300,000 300,000
BROLE Rk (Note FiFE (1))
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000
FEfx i (Note Fi#7E (2)
303,000
(73.01%)
Chan Kwong Yin William () Ordinary shares 5,704 300,000 305,704
BRAE Rl (Note P &E (1))
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000
FEhx R (Note FfizE (2)
308,184
(74.39%)
Tse Pui To Share options 2,600 - 2,600
iipz=g el BB R (Note Fff & (2)) (0.63%)
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Notes:

(1) These shares of the Company are held by Tin Ching Holdings. Each of Mr.
Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William owns 50% of the
issued share capital of Tin Ching Holdings. By virtue of the provisions of
Part XV of the SFO, both Mr. K.N. Chan and Mr. W. Chan are deemed to
be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Tin Ching Holdings
is interested or deemed to be interested.

(2)  These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued to
the respective Directors upon the exercise of the share options granted to
each of them under the Share Option Scheme, details of which are
disclosed in the preceding section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this
section.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors or the chief executive of
the Company had registered any interest or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

BAE

(1) ZEARERODBRSEELRRE - RAEEE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/OR FERHERKRORMEBERD ZEH
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING [ H#%&

SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the following 201993318 @ IBESA - LA FA T (R
persons (other than a director or chief executive of our Company), who A FIE =B STHABRINBEERDRZ
had interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares ~ J& 5 iR 2 i R AR + BRIEH
of our Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of % K& HIE {§H 8 XV 3 2 K& 39 B8 2 &3 F LA
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register ¥ 5& - s iR 155 5 & HIE 50 2 336 (§ iR E &0
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO: BRREFE 2 ERMA -

Number of Shares and
underlying shares held (’000)
sk REBROEE (TR)

Total
Interest in a (% of the issued
Name of substantial Shares/ Beneficial controlled share capital
shareholders Equity derivatives owner corporation of the Company)
e
37 REEZE (EERARBEHT
TERRBEEB RESTETR BERBEAA EEER BRAZ2EDL)
Tin Ching Holdings Ordinary shares 300,000 - 300,000
PN el (72.29%)
Chan Koung Nam () Ordinary shares - 300,000 300,000
B .l EBA
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000
RE R
303,000
(73.01%)
Chan Kwong Yin William (i) Ordinary shares 5,704 300,000 305,704
BRAE =Rl
(i) Share options 3,000 - 3,000
fERE
308,704
(74.39%)
Head and Shoulders Ordinary shares 20,772 - 20,772
Global Investment EimAR (5.01%)
Fund SPC — HS
Powered Alpha

Segregated Portfolio
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of our Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, our top five customers (as
determined by interest income generated) accounted for approximately
12.3% (2018: 10.5%) of our total revenue and our single largest customer
accounted for approximately 3.4% (2018: 2.3%) of our total revenue.

All of our top five customers were third parties independent to our
Company and its connected person(s) or associate(s). To the best of our
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, none of our Group, our
Directors, members of our senior management, and their respective
associates and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued
Shares, had any interest in or financial or business relationship with any
of our Group’s top five customers during the year ended 31 March 2019.

B EXPRIEEE SN W 2019F3 A31H - #i
BEMAL (EFHARBRSTHRAERIN)
RARBZ BBk mT - FHEBEREE
R AEIGRGIZEXVERE 2 K 35 88 Z &3 F A
B HERARRAREZE S LS GIFE
336 EBFE 2B LMAZ R R IAR

EEEN

HE2019F3 AN HIEFE ARG WES
BRENIENEEMOET 2 BIE RITRIER
NS FHEEREL -

FEXF

HE2019F3A31BILFE  HMzARE
FUZTEEFBWAEE) M B MBKEL
12.3% (2018 4F : 10.5%) * MBI 2 E —& K
B AR TP S 493.4% (20185 1 2.3%) °

AREFH BB AN R R EEEA 5
BAZEZF - BEEMA - FIERFE &
58 FF SLATEEXNERFEESACH
BA UREBEEITRHE5% A EZIRE
REZE2019F3A3 T HIEFEMERAEER
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of our Controlling Shareholder, namely Tin Ching Holdings, Mr.
Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, has entered into the
Deed of Non-competition in favor of our Company, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally,
undertakes and covenants with each of our Company and our
subsidiaries that as long as the Shares remain so listed on the Stock
Exchange and he/it and his/its associates, individually or collectively with
any other Controlling Shareholder(s) is, directly or indirectly, interested in
30% or more of the Shares in issue, or is otherwise regarded as a
Controlling Shareholder (as that term is defined under the Listing Rules
from time to time) of our Company, each of the Controlling Shareholders
shall not, and shall procure that none of his/its associated (excluding any
members of our Group) shall, among others:

(@ directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business activity and any business activities undertaken by
our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”) which any
member of our Group may undertake in the future in Hong Kong
except for the holding of not more than 5% shareholding interests
in any listed company in Hong Kong;

(b) take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an interference
with or a disruption to the Restricted Business including, but not
limited to, solicitation of the customers, suppliers or staff of our
Group; and

(c) exploit his/its knowledge or information obtained from our Group to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the business carried on by our
Group from time to time.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the Controlling
Shareholders on compliance with each of their respective undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders and
confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is fully complied with and
duly enforced during the year.

T BT A

PERAR R SBIER - Rt EE MR EEE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transaction, which also constituted
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, entered into
by our Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 is contained in Note
35 to the financial statements.

The following summarised continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2019. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Fully exempted continuing connected transaction

On 1 April 2018, HK Finance (as borrower), our Company (as guarantor)
and Tin Ching Industrial (as lender) entered into the loan agreement,
pursuant to which Tin Ching Industrial agreed to provide the loan facility
of up to HK$200,000,000 to HK Finance for the money lending business
of our Group at an interest rate of 1.25% per annum over the HK$ prime
rate quoted by DBS (Hong Kong) Limited for a term subject to review by
Tin Ching Industrial at any time but in any event no later than one year
after the date of the loan agreement.

As Tin Ching Industrial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tin Ching Holdings
which is the substantial Shareholder of our Company and is a connected
person (as defined under the Listing Rules), accordingly the loan
agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction for providing
financial assistance to our Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, as the loan facility is provided by Tin Ching Industrial for
our Group’s and Shareholders’ benefits, and on normal or better
commercial terms to our Company where no security over our Group’s
assets is granted in respect of the loan facility, the loan agreement as
continuing connected transaction is fully exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transaction has been reviewed by
the independent non-executive Directors of our Company. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction was entered into (a) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of our Group and under arm’s length
negotiations; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to our Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (c) in accordance with the loan agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of our
Shareholders as a whole.

AEBREZ2019F3A31BLEFERTYZ
BB T R S IMERK LR BIFT RERER S -
BB ZESHN Y FRERMIFESS ©

T AEBEREZE2019F3 A31 HIEF
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QOur Directors confirms that our Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
connected transactions to which our Company was a party during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to our Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of its issued shares in the Stock Exchange throughout the
year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of our Company have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RVR R iR

o
pwec

To the Shareholders of Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Finance Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 84 to 168, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment assessment of loans

and interest receivables.

Key Audit Matter
HRESSEHE

BEEER
FRREFAFESRERMANEXHE - B8
ARG EMBERENEARBEENFE 5
LEHRARMBAERGAMBBR LA
BREEITRIEN - WA TSHELFHREH
BEBENER -

BN E LIS TR S R B 2 R AT A
B RRASEERT FIA ©

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNAEERRETSIE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables

JEWE TR T SR E AP A

Refer to Note 3.1(b) (credit risk), Note 4.1(a) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements), Note 21 (loans
receivable) and Note 23 (interest receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements.

RiR S IR S.1(0) (FERR) - Witd.1() (EE
EEHEFT R AVED) - B2 (B EUEIE) KM 23 (FE
WAE) o

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s loans and interest
receivables amounted to HK$881,299,000 and
HK$22,075,000, respectively.

R2019463A31H EXEEZEWEREFNED A
881,299,000 % 7t & 22,075,000 & 7T °

We assessed management’s assessment of provision for
impairment of loans and interest receivables by performing
the following procedures:

BB BIAT T HIAE el (4B 3 B 3t B & R S N BORUE
BfsrEL 2 FTHE ¢

° understood, evaluated and validated the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls over impairment
assessment of loans and interest receivables, which
relates to management’s judgements and assumptions
including significant increase in credit risk, criteria of
defaults and forward-looking information;

e  TH FEKBRBREEEEAHNELER(BEEER
BRATRIE I - BRORERAEEER) B2 HEK
SRR BIBMERT b 2 226 2 5T MEERRK

o carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the
existence and accuracy of the aging of loans and
interest receivables applied in the ECL model and as at
the balance sheet date;

o  REAREEEBRIABEAZERUEREFEREE
A2 R = B R KERNI TR T

° involved a valuation expert to review the valuation
methodology and approach adopted by management
in the ECL model;

s ZERMAEERFHEAEEBREAMKRNZEET
ERFR

EREEREARDA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
HRESSBH

BEREFEISHE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNAEERRETSIE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
(Continued)
JEWE TR SR EFT 1 ()

Management assessed the provision for impairment of loans
and interest receivables based on the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model. The ECL model involves significant
management judgements and assumptions regarding the
probability of default, loss given default, historical
delinquency ratio of loans and interest, collateral values,
economic indicators on forward-looking information as well
as other significant factors not covered in the ECL model, if
applicable.

EREANBREERXR ([FEHEEERKL ] R AR K
EREMBRERE - B EERREXN SR EMENHE
K OEHBRE  GRENEAEHER X KRR EE -
ATIEMER 2 BEEFRUARTEA EEBARALRRE 2
HthEARAER(WER) 2 ERERE I8 RREK -

We focused on this area because the carrying value of loans
and interest receivables is significant to the consolidated
financial statements and management’s estimation of ECL
allowance of loans and interest receivables involves
significant judgments and estimates.

BTN SR REREWEREFE Z REEL S
BMBHREMEEBEAN - MERB MG EERERLFE
ZEHEER KB ER P M ERAE LGt -

° evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions,
such as delinquency ratio and collateral values used in
the ECL model with reference to the historical data and
market economic data; and

e FIAXZEBRZEDREE  HINB2ERIBEIERTIHL
BEIRHTERHE BB KR T AR b R R &
BE: &

° re-performed management’s calculation of collective
impairment assessment which grouped together all the
receivables with similar risk characteristics based on
the probability of default, exposure at default, loss
given default, forward-looking information and other
significant factors taken into account in estimating the
ECL allowance.

e EMNMFHEREHEBRMETME  REBEEOKE .
BEHRE - BAEBKRE - BIEEER A RMEFTERHE
BERABRBRERHMERRRGAMAEERR
FrER L EMGRIAAETT -

Based on the procedures described above, we considered
the methodology used, key assumptions, judgments and
estimates applied in the impairment assessment of loans and
interest receivables were supportable by available evidence.
RIE D27 - BRI AT 4 U S RO F BOR B R PR
R7RE - ERERE - B RMAEFT T BB -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Re 2 EWARK

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z= 201943 A31 HILFE
Year ended 31 March
HZ3ASIHLEE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E T FHIT
Revenue g 6 160,992 132,149
Other income and gain E A YA K Mz 6 2,334 2,204
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation — E{LIKEWMEZ A FE
of investment properties (E18) s 17 (1,490) 21,640
Provision for impairment and write-off FEWEFRERE R
of loans receivable, net HisE 58 7 (24,701) (14,991)
Administrative expenses THHAX 8 (563,951) (58,861)
Operating profit REER 83,184 82,141
Finance costs RE A 11 (34,651) (27,522)
Profit before income tax MR8 B AR R 48,533 54,619
Income tax expense IS 12 (6,369) (4,569)
Profit and total comprehensive KATEE AEMN
income for the year attributable to FEERANEEZE
owners of the Company PN L 42,164 50,050
Earnings per share for profit RATEE AEN
attributable to owners mAzERBF
of the Company
— Basic (HK cents) — EA GBI 13(a) 10.2 12.1
— Diluted (HK cents) — B8 (B 13(b) 10.2 12.1
Dividends i85 14 10,375 8,300

84 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sre MR

As at 31 March 2019 /201943 H31 H

As at 31 March

A3A31H
2019 2018
2019 % 2018 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T TET FETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 16 78,198 80,637
Investment properties WEYME 17 84,680 86,170
Available-for-sale investment A HERSE 2.1.1(o) - 625
Financial asset at fair value through LA EFAER
profit or loss TRVEE 20 800 -
Loans receivable FEE X 21 138,153 165,917
Other asset EWJEF 22 435 710
Deferred income tax assets REFTSIEE 33 619 2,385
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 302,885 336,444
Current assets REBEE
Loans receivable JEE 3R 21 743,146 677,562
Interest receivables FEUF) B, 23 22,075 18,058
Repossessed assets IWElEE 24 35,859 35,859
Prepayments, deposits and TEIRIE - ke &k
other receivables H i e U B 25 1,480 2137
Tax recoverable A Y [B] 718 2,057 842
Cash and cash equivalents HEMEEEED 26 37,294 33,710
Total current assets RBEEHAT 841,911 768,168
Total assets BEEHEE 1,144,796 1,104,612
Equity R
Equity attributable to the owners ERAREEAREESR
of the Company
Share capital R 2R 27 4,150 4,150
Reserves 1 29 565,577 534,595
Total equity R 569,727 538,745
BEREEKEEARLT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

sre MR

As at 31 March 2019 /201943 H31 H

As at 31 March

A3A31H
2019 2018
2019 % 2018 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T TET FETT
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payable and accruals HipEtRIa R EsTE R 30 6,553 8,249
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JE 1~ — R [R) KB BB A R 5K I8 35(b) 106,524 125,284
Tax payable FERIE 683 1,054
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 31 360,883 322,443
Bonds &5 32 - 27,000
Total current liabilities REEERE 474,643 484,030
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Bonds ﬁ%«’ 32 98,216 78,919
Deferred income tax liabilities RICFAIISTHEE 33 2,210 2,918
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERTE 100,426 81,837
Total liabilities EE8E 575,069 565,867
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 1,144,796 1,104,612
Net current assets REEEFEE 367,268 284,138
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERAEBESE 670,153 620,582
On behalf of the Board REREEE

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William

RABRE

Chairman

2
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Executive director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
/\\/T\ 1_"_ T 2 @J i%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z= 201943 A31 HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company

KARHB RS
Share
Share Share Capital option Retained
capital premium reserve reserve eamnings Total
A BREEE  EARE BRERE  REERR m@st

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TET TAT TAT TET TR TET

Balance at 1 April 2017 R201754 A1 B2t 4,150 103,665 100,020 3,256 285,489 496,580

Total comprehensive income FEZHBALE

for the year - - - - 50,050 50,050
Transactions with owners BREEAZRS

Employee share option scheme: ES RS

— lapse of share options — BRI R - - - (60) 60 -

Dividends relating to 2017 BHE2017TFZRE 14 - - - - (4,565) (4,565)

Dividends relating to 2018 BE2018F 2R & 14 - - - - (8,320) (3,320)
Total transactions with owners,  BEEAZRZEE

recognised directly in equity EERERER - - - (60) (7,825) (7,885)
Balance at 31 March 2018 H2018F3 B 31 Azt 4,150 103,665 100,020 3,196 327,714 538,745
Balance at 31 March 2018 W2018E3 B 31 Az 4,150 103,665 100,020 3,196 327,714 538,745

Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 S4B BT ISR ERIE 0%

(Note 2.1.1(b)) BB (ME2.1.10) - - - - (1,222) (1,222)
Restated total equity R2018F4 8182
at 1 April 2018 KEFIERAE 4,150 103,665 100,020 3,196 326,492 537,523

Total comprehensive income FEXAUAGE

for the year - - - - 42,164 42,164
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS

Dividends relating to 2018 BEA2018F 28 14 - - - - (4,980) (4,980)

Dividends relating to 2019 BHE2019F 2K E 14 - - - - (4,980) (4,980)
Total transactions with owners, BEEAZRZHEE

recognised directly in equity HERERRED - - - - (9,960) (9,960)
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F3 B 31 Azis 4,150 103,665 100,020 3,196 358,696 569,727

EREEKREARAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MARETNER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z= 201943 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31 March
BZEZ3HSIHIEEE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E T FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBIHLRE
Cash generated from operations KEMBHES 15(a) 43,281 7,751
Interest paid BERFE (33,255) (25,400)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNBEENER (6,656) (6,229)
Net cash generated from/(used in) B ZETES(FTE)
from operating activities B& 55 3,370 (23,878)
Cash flows from investing activities REXKZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BENMKE
equipment (506) (2,100)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEFRRS S8 (506) (2,100)
Cash flows from financing activites FEXKHERE 15(b)
Repayment of bank and BERITREMBER
other borrowings (1,391,616) (1,693,774)
Proceeds from new bank and FTILIRTT R E A E RIS R
other borrowings 1,430,056 1,700,465
(Decrease)/increase in amount FE — R M B A I FIE
due to a fellow subsidiary Crid) /180 (18,760) 55,584
Redemption of bonds EOES (9,000) (10,000)
Dividend paid EfRIRE (9,960) (7,885)
Net cash generated from financing BB EBTRIR & 558
activities 720 44,390
Net increase in cash and HReRBESEEYILMTE
cash equivalents 3,584 18,412
Cash and cash equivalents FY2Re MEEEEY
at beginning of the year 33,710 15,298
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZESRESEEY
of the year 26 37,294 33,710
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 6 February 2013 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands. The address of
the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Tin Ching Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of
directors of the Company for issue on 27 June 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TS R M vt

2

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) for this financial year and the comparative
period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments to

standards for the first time for its annual reporting
period commencing 1 April 2018:

° Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle;

° Transfers of investment property —
Amendments to HKAS 40;

° Classification and measurement of share-
based payment transactions — Amendments
to HKFRS 2;

° HKFRS 9 — Financial instruments;

° HKFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(@

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The adoption of these amendments to standards did
not have any material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current year and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements. The impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 is disclosed in
the following section.

Impact of the adoption of new standards

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on the
Group’s financial information and also discloses the
new accounting policies that have been applied
since 1 April 2018, where they are different to those
applied in prior periods.

HKFRS 9 “Financials Instruments”

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” replaces HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments” from 1 April 2018 resulted in
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

92

Impact of the adoption of new standards (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financials Instruments” (Continued)

Impact of adoption
In accordance with the transitional provisions in

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 9 is generally adopted without
restating comparative information with the exception
of certain aspects of hedge accounting. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new impairment rules are therefore not reflected in
the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, but are recognised in the opening of the
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018.

The following tables show the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item. Line items
that are not affected by the changes have not been
included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers
provided.

2 EXEHBEME@RE)

21 RREEE)
211 B BERREERN 22D

(%)

()

FRANFTTER 2 572 (B)
BB B RELERIE IR
[$RITA|(4)
A
RARE B B 75 3RS 2R
FIRZBEK - BF
ISR EEAFE IR E
EBILHRERTEAE
B P e R E
EFFEmBBHN - B
It FORERREEZ
EMOBERABRTE
201843 A31 B Z B 7%
Rk ER B R
20184 4 A1 BEM IS
IR 7 B R TERR ©

TRIRBLE E5E A
BRZAE  TXEHY
FEZHEBYRBEE
W BUER AT IR 2
BrEMAEHMEE
ZNEH R R

As at 31 March Effect of As at 1 April
Consolidated statement of 2018 as originally the adoption of 2018 as
financial position (extract) presented HKFRS 9 restated
1R 2018%F R 120184
3A31H IHREER 48181
RERBERAR (BE) (REZ5)) FORTE (B E5))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL FHT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Loans receivable EME R 165,917 - 165,917
Deferred income tax assets EEFMEHEE 2,385 241 2,626
Current assets hEBEE
Loans receivable EME R 677,562 (1,463 676,099
Total assets EEAE 1,104,612 (1,222) 1,103,390
Equity i
Reserves & 534,595 (1,222) 533,373
Total equity ERaE 538,745 (1222) 537,523
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

at 1 April 2018 and 1 April 2017 is summarised as

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EASHBEEHE (&)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 211 B BERBEEEN 225
(Continued) (&)
(b)  Impact of the adoption of new standards (Continued) (b)  FRANFTEIERC ZE(4E)
HKFRS 9 “Financials Instruments” (Continued) BRI WELERE W
(€@ THEI(E)
Impact of adoption (Continued) Rz 22 (E)
The total impact on the Group’s retained earnings as ¥ A& ER20185F 4 A

1A K2017TE481B 2

follows: REBBAEK 2 BB
ERfammn
2018 2017
2018 4F 20174
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Closing retained earnings HARIREE 2 A
31 March — HKAS 39 3A31H — &FEst
AR5 3957 327,714 285,489
Increase in provisions for impairment FEUWE FOR BB IE N
of loans receivable (1,463) -
Increase in deferred income tax OB B R 2 R
assets relating to provisions of FriS i & 2=
impairment 241 -
Adjustments to retained earnings 2018 4 A1 H
from adoption of HKFRS 9 MBS RS
on 1 April 2018 AERISE QSR M &
REBBFIEL TR (1,222) -
Opening retained earnings HYIRE B
1 April — HKFRS 9 4718 — BEYHK
WELRE 95 326,492 285,489
BEREEEEERALA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)
(b)  Impact of the adoption of new standards (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financials Instruments” (Continued)

Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group), management has assessed
which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Group and classified its financial assets
into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

The application of the new standard does not have a
significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets as debt
instruments currently classified as loans and
receivables will continue to be measured at
amortised cost.

This category includes the Group’s loans receivable,
interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents.

The asset previously classified as available-for-sale
investment is reclassified as financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Impact of the adoption of new standards (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financials Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment under expected credit losses (“ECL”)
model

The Group has two types of financial assets that are
subject to HKFRS 9’s new ECL model, which are
loans receivable and interest receivables. The Group
recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. The impact of the change in
impairment methodology on the Group’s retained
earnings and equity is disclosed above.

While cash and cash equivalents and deposits and
other receivables are also subject to the impairment
requirement of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss is immaterial.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. Assessments are performed based
on the Group’s historical credit loss exposure,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions, current conditions at
the end of the reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

96

Impact of the adoption of new standards (Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financials Instruments” (Continued)

Impairment under expected credit losses (“ECL”)

model (Continued)

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment on whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Details of the ECL model and measurement
technique are set out in Note 3.1(b).

The loss allowances for loans receivable and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2018 reconcile to the
opening loss allowances on 1 April 2018 as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Impact of the adoption of new standards (Continued)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, HKAS 18 “Revenue” and related
Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising
from contracts with customers, unless those
contracts are in the scope of other standards. The
new standard establishes a five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the
model to contracts with their customers. The
standard also specifies the accounting for the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the
costs directly related to fulfiling a contract.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” from 1 April 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The
Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption (if any) will be
recognised in retained earnings as at 1 April 2018
and that comparatives will not be restated.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in any
significant impact to the financial statements as the
timing of revenue recognition is not changed.
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2

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for the 31 March 2019 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result

in almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

Impact
The standard will affect primarily the accounting for

the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group does not have non-cancellable
operating lease as a leasee and management does
not expect to have a material impact on the Group.

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material
and hence the Group does not expect any significant
impact on the consolidation financial statements.
However, some additional disclosures will be
required.

2 EXEHBEME@RE)

21 wREEHE)
211 B BERREEN 22D

(&)
()

[ K FR AN 2 37 5T 2E Bl %
B
BETHIISTERR
BEEM HEHBAR
201943 A31 B k& HA
foa$lfER - BREX
EERERM - AEE
HZSMT £ REE
BTN T -

BEAVBHRELENZE16
g% [HE

BEME

BEAMBHREENE16
5% 201641 B B ff o
B EUH AC & FH & B
BHREzRA - HEH
BTHBEHEARESE
MR RAKRPER R
BRI &R - EE(HE
HR 2 ERA#E) R AHE
SZERBEHERR -
HERHAKEEZA
ERBHIN -

AMEAA AR
BTEEEARD -

%
ZHREAKEIEFER
SEKLEHEZ SR
B RmEEH K&
B3 EAE A RATEA
ZRAHIERERE
HERERMAZET
SEXEMNEATE -

AEEER/RBHEAZE
P FER BRAKHE
BERSEAMBRETE
EXEREATE - R
- BAREESER -

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SBEASNHEHEH)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 211 B BERBBEEN LD
(Continued) (4&)
(c)  New standards and interpretation not yet adopted (© RN FTETER K

(Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 April 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to confirm with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

100

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the
entities now comprising the Group that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices and residential
property for a director. Leasehold land classified as finance lease
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TS R M vt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Land and buildings 40-50 years
— Office equipment 4 years
— Furniture and fixtures 4 years
— Leasehold improvements 4 years
— Motor vehicles 4 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as “Fair value gains on revaluation of investment
properties”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

102

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification
From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets
in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2.8.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

2.8.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

104

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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BA TS R M vt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2.8.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instrument
assets carried at amortised cost. The Group recognises a
loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

° An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

° The time value of money; and

° Reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Note 3.1(b) provides more detail of how the expected
credit loss allowance is measured.

2.8.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a result,
the comparative information provided continues to be
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following categories:

° loans and receivables, and

° available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification determined on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Management determined the

classification of its investments at initial recognition. See
Note 19 for details about each type of financial asset.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

106

(@

Reclassification

The Group could choose to reclassify a non-
derivative trading financial asset out of the held for
trading category if the financial asset was no longer
held for the purpose of selling it in the near term.
Financial assets other than loans and receivables
were permitted to be reclassified out of the held for
trading category only in rare circumstances arising
from a single event that was unusual and highly
unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the
Group could choose to reclassify financial assets
that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held for trading or available-
for-sale categories if the Group had the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

Reclassifications were made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value became the new cost
or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of
fair value gains or losses recorded before
reclassification date were subsequently made.
Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified
to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
categories were determined at the reclassification
date. Further increases in estimates of cash flows
adjusted effective interest rates prospectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
2.8.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not
change an adoption of HKFRS 9, see description
above.

Subsequent to the initial, recognition loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments were
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at FVPL were subsequently carried at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
are recognised as follows:

° for financial assets at FVPL — in profit or loss
within other gains/(loss)

° for available-for-sale financial assets that are
monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency — translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost of the security
were recognised in profit or loss and other
changes in the carrying amount were
recognised in other comprehensive income

° for other monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale — in
other comprehensive income.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments
is determined are disclosed in Note 3.3(a).

When securities classified as available-for-sale were
sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in other comprehensive income were
reclassified to profit or loss as gains and other losses
from investment securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)

108

)

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting
period whether there was objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets was
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets was impaired and impairment losses were
incurred only if there was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that could
be reliably estimated. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost was considered an
indicator that the assets are impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss was
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
had not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset was reduced and the amount of
the loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment had a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
was the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group could
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease could
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described
in note 3.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EASNHEHES)

(Continued)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued) 2.8
2.8.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(Continued)
(c)  Impairment (Continued)
Assets classified as available-for-sale
If there was objective evidence of impairment for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — was removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in profit or loss were not reversed
through profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increased in a subsequent period
and the increase could be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments 29

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B11%

sty 7% Y

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.10 Loans and interest receivables

2.11

Loans receivable are property mortgage loans granted to
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from property mortgage
loans granted to customers in the ordinary course of business.

Loan and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

110

Trade payables are obligations to pay for services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
2.15 Borrowings

EXREMBERBE @)

2.15 &5k

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

ERBRAFEIRAEEZR S
FXANHE R o 1 SR BE 1R IR S AR A
B TS R0R (IR R ZEA) BEE
BERE R ZEABRMEEEER
HREN G 2ERARPRHER -

EEFBREA SO KEERRZ
BRT  MELEFREMI N2 E
RTHERRR A - ERBERT
ZERARELERE  BEERERR
1k B EPRBRZEFHRE A
BERb D S 2 ARIEEN - RIHSRZ B MR
ERERREBEDR IR < FEN KA -
YR EHARRA R E PR A -

BROEREEBE BIGHENBREZ
REREEHREHRERD12(8H -
BAERBRE/RBARE -

CENDZN

EERBERWE  BENAEERER
BE(BUEAR-BREEERIENE
HBRERBHHEECEE) 2R R
FEEFRA  That A\RFEEZK
AR EEEEARELHEZHEEERTE
RigsHE /L

T Eeft e AR A 2 A AR 2
PR -

T ers 111



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

112

(@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

@

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of reporting date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

114

©

(d)

Pension obligations

For employees in Hong Kong, the Group has a defined
contribution plan. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)
In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.20 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their
fair value less costs of disposal and the amortised cost of the
related outstanding loans on the date of repossession. The
related loans together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position upon the recognition of repossessed assets.
Repossessed assets are measured subsequently at cost less
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TS R M vt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

(@) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(b) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.22 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution

116

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to various types of financial risks:
market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

3.1

(@

Market risk — Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its bank and
other borrowings, bonds and an amount due to a fellow
subsidiary. Bank and other borrowings and an amount due
to a fellow subsidiary issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash held at variable rates. Bonds issued at fixed rates
are subject to fair value interest rate risk. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest-rate risk. The Group manages its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk mainly by adjusting the interest rates
on loans granted to customers.

As at 31 March 2019, if market interest rates had been 1%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$3,013,374 lower/
higher (2018: HK$3,146,000), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on bank borrowings and amount
due to a fellow subsidiary carried at variable rates.

Although bonds issued at fixed rates are subject to fair
value interest rate risk, they are not remeasured in the
financial statement in response to changes in market
interest rates and therefore changes in market interest rate
would not affect the reported profit or loss.
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3.1

(b)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BERERERE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBRABEZE)
Credit risk (b) EERRKE
The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash REFBZEERREIERENR
equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables, deposits S RIAEEEY - EWER -
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy in EUF B - e REMEWKR
place and the exposures to these credit risks are B BEECEREEREK
monitored on an ongoing basis. The carrying amount of W EERZEZEZERE - B
these balances represents the Group’s maximum exposure FAEHEmMEREAEEGR T
to credit risk in relation to financial assets are as follows: it mEEmMmEE Y R AE
EL
As at 31 March
MR3A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B THET THETT
Loans receivable e E K 21 881,299 843,479
Interest receivables JEWH B 23 22,075 18,058
Deposits and other receivables e &k HAEW IR 25 401 652
Cash and cash equivalents BekBLEEY 26 37,294 33,710
941,069 895,899
(i) Credit risk management ) B E S
Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are NEBKZEHR S NI
deposited in major financial institutions located in SEBYHGEREHEIE
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Hong Kong, which the Group’s management
believes are of high credit quality.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for
each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are offered.
If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the customer based on the
customer’s financial position, past experience and
other factors.

For property mortgage loans, the Group holds
collateral against loans receivable and interest
receivables in the form of mortgages over property.
Majority of the collateral are residential properties,
commercial properties and industrial properties and
all of the collaterals are located in Hong Kong.
Individual risk limits are set based on the value of
collaterals provided by customers and internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the
directors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

(b)

)

Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group generally grants loans with a loan-to-
value ratio of no more than 70% of the value in the
valuation report of the property for first property
mortgage, and where it is subordinate property
mortgage, the aggregate lending from all lenders to
the customer should not exceed 70% of the value of
the underlying property. Approval from the directors,
a credit manager and a credit officer is needed for
loans granted with a loan-to-value ratio that exceeds
70%. The directors meet regularly to review the loan-
to-value ratio and when (1) there is a significant
change in the property price index in Hong Kong; or
(2) when loans are renewed. The directors consider
that the credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables is significantly mitigated by the property
held as collateral, with reference to the estimated
market value of the property which were valued by
independent third party valuers as at the end of the
reporting period.

In general, the loan officers of the Group propose to
management of the Company on a monthly basis
the amount of provision to be made.

For personal loans, the Group assesses the credit
quality of the customer based on the customer’s
financial position, past experience, internal and
external credit rating of the customers and other
factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

120

(b)

(i)

Expected credit loss (“ECL”") measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for
impairment based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-
impaired on initial recognition.

Stage 1:

Stage 2: If a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition is identified, the
financial instrument is moved to Stage 2
but is not yet deemed to be credit-

impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to Stage 3.

Stage 3:

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL
measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from
default events possible within the next 12 months.
Investment in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL
measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifetime basis. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL
in accordance with HKFRS 9 is that it should
consider forward-looking information. The key
judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group
in addressing the requirements of the standard are
discussed below.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

(b)

(i)

(iv)

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
one or more of the following criteria have been met:

° The borrower is more than 30 days past due
on its contractual payments.

The assessment of significant increase in credit risk
is performed on a monthly basis for all loans and
interest receivables held by the Group. The criteria
used to identify significant increase in credit risk are
monitored and reviewed periodically for
appropriateness by the directors and the credit
team. The Group has not used the low credit risk
exemption for any financial instruments in the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a loan as in default, which is fully
aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it
meets one or more of the following criteria:

° The borrower is more than 90 days past due
on its contractual payments.

° The borrower is deceased.
o The borrower is insolvent.

° It is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy.

The criteria above have been applied to all loans held
by the Group and are consistent with the definition
of default used for internal credit risk management
purposes. The default definition has been applied
consistently to model the Probability of Default
(“PD”), Exposure at Default (“EAD”) and Loss Given
Default (“LGD”) throughout the Group’s expected
loss calculations.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

122

(b)

(iv)

v)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
(Continued)

A loan is considered to no longer be in default when
it no longer meets any of the default criteria for a
consecutive period of six months. This period of six
months has been determined based on an analysis
which considers the likelihood of a loan returning to
default status.

ECL measuring techniques

ECLs are the discounted product of the PD, EAD
and LGD defined as follows:

° PD represents the likelihood of a borrower
defaulting on its financial obligation.

° EAD is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default.

° LGD represents the Group’s expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. It
varies by type of counterparty and availability
of collateral.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD
and EAD for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted
based on the forward-looking information.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

(b)

v)

ECL measuring techniques (Continued)

The lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity
profile to the current 12-month PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio
from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on
historical observed data and is assumed to be the
same across all assets within a portfolio. This is
supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined
based on the contractual repayments owed by the
borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined
based the factors which impact the recoveries made
post default. For property mortgage loans, this is
primarily based on collateral type and projected
collateral values, historical discounts to market
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed. For personal loans, LGDs’
are typically set at product level due to the limited
differentiation in recoveries achieved across different
borrowers.

Forward-looking economic information is also
included in determining the 12-month and lifetime
PD, EAD and LGD.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation are
monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis. There
have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during
the reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

124

(b)

(vi)

(vii)

Forward-looking information incorporated

The Group has established macro-economic
forecast model. The Group conduct forecasts
regularly to establish three economic scenario,
optimistic, neutral and pessimistic to ensure
coverage of non-linear features for the ECL model.
Neutral scenario is defined as the most probable
situation which will become benchmark for other
scenarios. Optimistic and pessimistic scenarios are
possible scenarios which are better and worse than
neutral scenario respectively. The Group uses
internal and external information to generate a
neutral scenario. The external information used
includes economic data and forecasts published by
the government and monetary authorities.

Other forward-looking considerations such as the
impact of any regulatory, legislative or political
changes have been considered but are not deemed
to have material impact and therefore no adjustment
has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is
reviewed and monitored for appropriateness on a
quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis
The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL
allowance are as follows:

Property mortgage loans
Property price index — given the significant impact it
has on mortgage collateral valuations.
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B 75 R I ot

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIEREEE &)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBRARBEZ#E)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) EERRE)
(vii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BRREST (&)
Personal loans N EN
Number of bankruptcy — given its impact on WEIRNE — ENESE
unsecured borrowers’ ability to meet their FIANBITENEREEZ
contractual repayments. B (fRIKFR) 2 B2 o
Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31 TXEG| AN EE RS
March 2019 that would result from reasonably EFE  REBEAZERR
possible changes in these parameters from the Bt G
actual assumptions used in the Group’s economic MzAEZFHmMEHRRN
variable assumptions: 201943 A31H 7 A &
EEBKES)
Impact on ECL allowance
on loans receivable and
Change in input on ECL model interest receivables
A EERARNZ HEKERLERFEZ
BABRE TRRHEEEREE T E
—  Assuming a further 10% weighting added to the probability of — Decrease by HK$100,000
the optimistic scenario and a corresponding 10% weighting
reduction in the base scenario
—  RREBEREEFINFIEE10% - WHRERIERIEE  — B4 100,000
MO REE10%
— Assuming a further 10% weighting added to the probability of — Increase by HK$2,076,000
the pessimistic scenario and a corresponding 10% weighting
reduction in the base scenario
—  BREBEEBERZEEFEINFINEE10% - WHRERIFRIEE  — #5012,076,000457T
MO REE10%
—  Assuming number of bankruptcy decreased by 10% — Decrease by HK$191,000
- REWEREEL 10% — 84> 191,000 7T
—  Assuming number of bankruptcy increased by 10% — Increase by HK$200,000
—  BRRBERBILIN10% — #0200,000 7% 7T
—  Assuming the forecast collateral value increase by 10% — Decrease by HK$299,000
—  BRENEFREEZIN10% — 84> 299,000 7T
—  Assuming the forecast collateral value decrease by 10% — Increase by HK$2,476,000
— R TR mEER D 10% — $£)N2,476,000 % 7T
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

126

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

3 BBEREEE)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BBEAMEZEE)
b) EERERE)
(viii)  Credit risk exposure (vii) 1= B
The following table contains an analysis of the credit TREH D HERIEEE
risk exposure of loans and interest receivables for BElEABEzEKRES
which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross ENEZZERBOHT
carrying amount of loans and receivables below also LTERKEERKEZ
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit EHEBEITREAE
risk on these assets. HZEEEmME &KX
EERR -
Movements in gross balance of loans and interest FEWEZ LT Btk E
receivables: 2E 7 EE) -
Year ended 31 March 2019
HE2019F3A31 HILEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RR F2MBR KL #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET TEx THEL
Balance as at 31 March 2018 F20185E3 A31A
a1 776,318 15,456 89,314 881,088
New loans originated EEN 401,781 59,465 5,589 466,835
Loans recovered or repaid FANENEEER
during the year (347,489) (15,175) (49,019) (411,683)
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 FIRRBAZ2REE 91,171) 91,171 - -
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 FoRBEAZ1RR 2,395 (2,395) - -
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 FIBRBAF R (99,296) = 99,296 =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 EoMBEAE3RE = (1,724) 1,724
Total transfers between stages PREr v R s (188,072) 87,052 101,020 =
Write-offs isH (6,712) (1,084) (35) (7,831)
As at 31 March 2019 R2019E3 A31 A 635,826 145,714 146,869 928,409
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BREMEEZE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEBEZE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) FEERRE)

(viij)  Credit risk exposure (Continued)
Movements in ECL allowance on loans and interest
receivables:

(i) (=B ()
W E & KB TR EHE
BERABBz2ES:

Year ended 31 March 2019
BZ2019F3 831 HILEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1BR F2MER ERYEE @t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
TR TR TR THT
Balance as at 31 March 2018 M201843H31H
2R - - - 11,620
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 RWERMBRS
ERBOR T2 - - - 1,463
Balance at 1 April 2018 M2018%4 A1H
2 8,228 1,132 3,723 13,083
New loans originated HEER 2,522 209 3,136 5,867
Loans recovered or repaid FRREHEEER
during the year (3,242) - (2,616) (5,858)
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 F1RBEHBAZ2RER (1,143) 1,143 - -
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 F1RBEBAZIRER (3,483) = 3,483 =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 FEoRBEBAEIREER = (1,096) 1,096 i
Total transfers between stages PRe v MR e (4,626) 47 4,579 =
Impact on year end ECL exposure HERBIHEEERL
lioa-7 (2,504) - 15,990 13,486
Movement within same stage dueto ~ R{E E &K 2 &) 3|5
change in credit risk R—PEE R & 4,066 (691) - 3,375
Write-offs sy - = (4,918) (4,918)
As at 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A 31 H 4,444 697 19,894 25,035
As at
31 March
M®3A31H
2018
20184F
HK$’000
FHET
Performing KRR 861,537
Doubtful RA 11,620
Loss & 18 7,931
Gross loans and interest receivables EWE R B AR 881,088
BEREEEEERALA
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BA TS R M vt

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(ix)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off loans and interest receivables,
in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group
may write-off loans and interest receivables that are
still subject to enforcement activities. The amounts
written-off during the year ended 31 March 2019
was HK$7,831,000. The Group still seeks to recover
amounts it is legally owed in full, but which have
been written-off due to no reasonable expectation of

full recovery.

(x)  Concentration risk

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 12% (2018: 10.5%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019. They
accounted for approximately 15.5% (2018: 12.7%)
of the gross loans receivable balances as at 31

March 2019.

(¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on
its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so
that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal financial position ratio targets and,
if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 HBEBREREE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBRARBEZ#E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (0 RBELRAK(E)
The Group’s primary cash requirements, apart from BRREEEERI  AEE
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank ZEXEHREERARITERE
borrowings, bonds, an amount due to a fellow subsidiary R EE EN—ERENE
and operating expenses. NBIERTE N BRI o
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TEEBEBERESHRES DT
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining EAE 2 e EIE R D ANEE 2
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual cREEEEBEINEBERIELY
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the D e RPFARESER/EL
contractual undiscounted cash flows. REFIFIR G 8 o
As at 31 March
MW3A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET
Within one year: 1ER :
Trade and other payables B REMEN TR 6,553 8,249
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary EN— R ZHE A A
IR 113,540 138,747
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEFK 380,375 335,172
Bonds (-6 5,850 34,215
506,318 511,383
Two to five years: 2E5F :
Bonds B 104,066 90,851
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3

130

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns to the shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank and other
borrowings’, ‘bonds’ and ‘amount due to a fellow subsidiary’ as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratio and
net cash position of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are as
follows:

3

MBERREE &)

3.2

BR s B i 2

AEBEERRAZ BRAREAEE
BERFRARE - (e ABCRIEH BRI
REMFNEREN S  UAREHR
{2 BN 2848 ORVE IR AN BOAR

REFARRARE  AEERE
HENTRRZBE  MBRRERE
A~ BITH R EEEARIKE
& o

REEUEERBL R AEEELIRR
AN o R RIRETS F AR AR AN A EE
FLETHE - B FHEABREAE (R
BERAMBIRRARARTRZ [R1TR
Hipfga ] [EFHF] RIEMN—HER
AMBRARZREBED BB RRSEE
) o RABE ARG KR KRR
IR E  AEEZREER
T KEENR201943A318 2
BEBGBEERBSHMUFENT

As at 31 March

M3AS31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BIsE FHT FHET
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EALE R 31 360,883 322,443
Bonds &5 32 98,216 105,919
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary — f&{<f — & X & A RIFIE 35(b) 106,524 125,284
Less: cash and cash equivalents R RESEEY 26 (37,294) (33,710)
Net debt B FE 528,329 519,936
Total equity TS ARRE 569,727 538,745
Gearing ratio EEABHER 0.93 0.97

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B EREE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEEMEE

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TRBEHEAFEMAHERMNZ

carried at fair value as at 31 March 2019 by level of inputs to BABIBEZR DT AEERR2019

valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are EIAMEEAFENEZER T

categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as B Bl AR VIR Y BEART

follows: BEREN=EZR

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical — [FE—REXABEERTEZ
assets or liabilities (level 1). RE(REFE)(E—H)

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that — BEESNE—RZ2REBIN &
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that EXBEzaEmeaE(aE
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level R)SREE(ENREBR) g A
2). BiE(E ) -

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on —  WIKBEEEmEEEmE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level TZ2EESXBER AZE(E
3). TR ARIE) (F=4) -

As at 31 March

A3HA31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Level 2 financial asset FEREOBMEE
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFABEZ
profit or loss TREE 800 -
Available-for-sale investment AIHEERE = 625
The fair value estimation of investment properties that are BAFEFEZREMEZ AFEM
measured at fair value is set out in Note 17. BEAN RN
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the FRNE—R F_HRE=H2MEL
year (2018: nil). MBS B (2018 4F ¢ ) o
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

132

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@

(b)

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance
The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance
for loans and interest receivables is an area that requires
the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about future economic conditions and credit behavior.
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in
Note 3.1(b), which also sets out key sensitives of the ECL
to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL,
such as:

o Determining criteria for significant increase in credit
risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for
the measurement of ECL and

° Establishing the number and relation weightings of
forward looking scenarios.

Estimated valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment property is determined annually
by similar transaction on an open market in existing use
basis. In making the judgement, consideration has been
given to assumptions that are mainly on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalisation rates of rental income.

4

EEGhF R HE
AEF RA B SR ER - LWABELRR

HEAEAEE

BREEHAREEMAE

ERBBEATERE =M -

41

EEETHETIRMER

AEBRARKEL B REBR - BE
B MELSGFBOEEHRE
IRERAAR o P KRG T —{ER B F
B BERAERAEFLAEAR
ZEXRRR 2 A RERmANT

() FWEIEEBRLABREZNE
EWEREFEEFEERKX
B2 hAFRAERERN
AR B BARREERAREE
ThrzERRBRZ&HE -5
ATEEAEEBRAMAR AL
& BER R FEZRER
M523 ()3t — 2B 5l - B
MEFIE EEBRAYZE T
KEH I ETEHRE -

EAEMH ER EEAKZ
SEAEH AL 2 BEA
#1850 -

e EBERFERBRBEEM
ZIRE

e HAEBEAEEERKE
AaERARER &

o HIFTHTERBR BB &
FARIEE -

b) BEWESEHEE
REME Y ATESEREH
(EFAEERE AT DL
RBEE - B ®
EETEEBBEHRTBMR
MBS WA 2 B %
2B

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TS R M vt

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)
() Income tax

The Group is subject to current income tax. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred income tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred income
tax assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted
tax rates (and laws) and the best knowledge of profit
projections of the Group for coming years during which the
deferred income tax assets are expected to be utilised. In
assessing the amount of deferred income tax assets that
need to be recognised, the Group considers future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. In the event that the Group estimates of
projected future taxable income and benefits from available
tax strategies are changed, or changes in current tax
regulations are enacted that would impact the timing or
extent of the Group’s ability to utilise the tax benefits of net
operating loss carried forward in the future, adjustments to
the recorded amount of net deferred income tax assets
and income tax expense would need to be made. In
addition, management will revisit the assumptions and
profit projections at each balance sheet date.

4

EREHEE R HE (@)

4.1

ERETHER REBRE)

(c)

FriE®

REB RGBS - &
EFEHEERAEHERH
B - RERXH R EZ&EHR
TARBERETE - AEB AN
BEBINAS R BT
BEHECAE - WEBR
REEGERETIDAREZED
Rl AEZRgFEETHEAS
B2 BV A S 30 SR AE P 1S 7

BEEMGHEAEAERCDR
A EL DM RIEREE
RAEMECEMSHEERSE
BEFFSRBERERZHE
(ROED)) BEE » R RK AT BE
B IR M AT R K SH B
EZ8 0 NHERBLEASHEE °

AEBEEEEBRECRHAXE
BEBRM 2B (FOER) - A
RAEBMEHE MRS
BB ARRFE Z & EEF
BAEERLEMSHEE - &F
HETHAZETCHENEE
THE AEBESEEARKE
RBEBWARBRITRERATZ
MR EIHRE - WAEEHH
FERIR K ERTHIWA KRR ER
5 SR B P SR R a2 T 3R
EAEE  HMITHBEERL
BIREFEASERRYA
REEEBRFBZRBN S
Z R fEskae S g8 - BIZAFE
PrEx S EEMBHEEFER
PSR s - ttoh BEEES
REFBEREFTRRME N TE
Al e

EREEKREARAR
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee which comprises the executive directors and
the chief executive officer of the Group. The management committee
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The management committee has determined
the operating segments based on these reports.

The management committee has determined that the Group is
organised into two main operating segments: (i) Property mortgage
loans and (ii) Personal loans. The management committee measures
the performance of the segments based on their respective segment
results. The segment results derived from profit/loss before taxation,
excluding unallocated (expenses)/income. Unallocated (expenses)/
income mainly comprise of corporate income net off with corporate
expenses including salary and other administrative expenses which are
not attributable to particular reportable segment.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalent and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets which are managed on a
group basis. Segment liabilities exclude income tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are managed on
a group basis.

There are no sales between the operating segments in the year ended
31 March 2018.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018.

All of the Group’s operating segments operate in Hong Kong, and
accordingly geographical segment information is presented.

7 EE R

FERERFACDHRARERZAT A
MARENTESRITHARAER - E12
ZEGEMALEZ AHHE - KmTE
ERRHEER - ERZERDRERS

BERELEDE -

SERTASEE D BREEZL
= %30%%&%Tﬁ&mﬁATM°
ERZESRBERSESBZOIEENE
DERIE - HHEBEREARHANEF,E
8 MTBEERSIE(FER) WA - x5
@Eﬁi/ﬂWAIEE%E¥WA’WW
BRIEFBRABEE2RO B OERT (B

EEHE MNEMITERS)

%%i? BREASLASEEMRIAS
BB A KRS @%&ﬁ%%
Ee QEEF BREABHAEBRASE

kY

i

SERERZ A RS REHREERE -

HZE2018FIABIALLFE  £&H
IS0 g o

DH

Hipd

HZE2019 %2018 FE3A31H IFFE @ K
EERAINBELZMBREREEYE
FEARMREBEN o

AEEMBEREDHORBLEEE  HL
EE27HR D EEF
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5

DEER (&)
BZ2019F3HA31HILLEE

Property
mortgage loans Personal loans Unallocated Total
MERBEN HAER RAE @t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR TR TET TET
Total segment revenue Db s 114,467 46,859 - 161,326
Inter-segment revenue S EpREE - (334) = (334)
Revenue from external customers REIPEF 7 Wik 114,467 46,525 - 160,992
Other income and gain HA Rz 308 10 2,016 2,334
Fair value losses on revaluation of BEfRENEY
investment properties AT EEE - - (1,490) (1,490)
Provision for impairment and R E TR ERE R
write-off of loans receivable, net MaEFE (14,393) (10,308) - (24,701)
Administrative expenses TBRAX (29,712) (20,481) (3,758) (53,951)
Operating profit/(loss) mEEn/ (B8) 70,670 15,746 (3,232) 83,184
Finance costs AR (27,248) - (7,403) (34,651)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERAIET (BB) 43,422 15,746 (10,635) 48,533
Income tax (expense)/credit R (Ax)/£% (4,907) (2,532) 1,070 (6,369)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive NSTE 2PN
income/(loss) for the year EEEN/(B8)
attributable to owners of R2ERA/
the Company (B1)as 38,515 13,214 (9,565) 42,164
As at 31 March 2019 H2019F3A31H
Property
mortgage loans Personal loans Unallocated Total
MERBER FHAER ROE @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THER TET TET
Segment assets NBEE 850,682 137,275 156,839 1,144,796
Segment liabilities HEEE (463,339) (2,031) (109,699) (575,069)
Other information: HipEE :
Depreciation expense HERZ (1,212) (1,043) (690) (2,945)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment: ~ J{EEE /(&) -
— Stage 1 - Z1RE 2,111 1,673 - 3,784
— Stage 2 — F2RE (395) 830 - 435
— Stage 3 - E3KR (16,109) (4,980) - (21,089)
Loans receivable written-off MR E R = (7,831) = (7,831)
BEGEEEEBRLT

2019 F 3R
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5

DEER (&)

BE2018F3A31 BLEFE

Property
mortgage loans Personal loans Unallocated Total
MERBER FAER ROHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THL THL THL
Revenue Iz 106,345 25,804 - 132,149
Other income and gain HiA R - - 2,204 2,204
Fair valug gains on revaluation of EfREMEL
investment properties N EYE - - 21,640 21,640
Provision for impairment and ERETREREER
write-off of loans receivable, net sHFE (2,328) (12,663) - (14,991)
Administrative expenses THRY (33,317) (25,147) (397) (58,861)
Operating profit/(oss) mERRN/(B51) 70,700 (12,006) 23,447 82,141
Finance costs REKA (18,843) - (8,679) (27,522)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERATER/(B18) 51,857 (12,006) 14,768 54,619
Income tax (expense)/credit Frew (X)), e (7,266) 2,290 407 (4,569)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive A A R HA AEIEERE
incomey/(loss) for the year wH/ (BB REE
attributable to owners of WA/ (BiB) 8
the Company 44,591 (9,716) 15,175 50,050
As at 31 March 2018 #2018 3 A31H
Property
mortgage loans Personal loans Unallocated Total
MERBER LAER AHEE 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL THIL THL
Segment assets NEEE 800,881 143,224 160,507 1,104,612
Segment liabilities NEEE (317,218 (3,215) (245,434) (665,867)
Other information: HinEx
Depreciation expense WERS (1,468) (r21) (803) (2,992)
Reversal of/(provision for) ERERERRE
individual impairment of B/ (BE)
loans receivable 393 (966) - (573)
Provision for collective impairment U ETFEERERE
of loans receivable (561) (5,926) - (6,487)
Loans receivable written-off MEEKER (2,160) (6,771) - (7,931)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 6
Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong. Revenue and other income and gain recognised during the

year are as follows:

W g DA H At WA K W 28
WEHEERBRUERBEARLAL
K2 BEEBFIRIZF B - RER
HeiR 2 o DA B LA A B s a0 T

Year ended 31 March
BZ3AS1ALEE

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FHET
Revenue: s -
Interest income — property mortgage loans FBWA — WEILZBER 114,467 106,345
Interest income — personal loans FMelA — FAER 46,525 25,804
Total revenue B 160,992 132,149
Other income and gain: H AU A RIS -
Fair value gain on revaluation of an financial EEBATEFABEZ
asset at fair value through profit or loss SRIEE AT ENRE 175 -
Rental income AU A 2,091 1,900
Sundry income FETEUTA 68 44
Gain on disposals of plant and equipment HEBE &E&E 2 W - 260
Total other income and gain EmA R85 2,334 2,204

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT AND WRITE-OFF OF 7

LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

P& W B R (13 s I 6 3 R

Year ended 31 March 2019
BZ201953A31HLEE

Lifetime Lifetime
12 months expected expected
expected credit loss not credit loss
creditloss  creditimpaired  credit impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEEE HREE
128 A5 BEZEH REZ2H
A EERA B EERA B EERA
(B1BR) (B2KR) (B3ER) @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FE7 FE7 FE7R FE7R
Net charge for/[reversal of) N/ (%R EREFRE
provisions for impairment RETE
on loans receivable (3,784) (435) 21,089 16,870
Write-off of loans receivable MEEERED 6,712 1,084 35 7,831
2,928 649 21,124 24701
EEREESERRAR
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7 PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT AND WRITE-OFF OF
LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET (Continued)

7 EWREFRERERMETFEE)

Year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3A31HILFE

Individual Collective
impairment impairment Write-off of
allowance allowance loan receivables Total
ERRERE RERERE HWHERER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THL THL THL
Net provision for impairment EYWEFRE
on loans receivable BEFE 573 6,487 7,931 14,991
8  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 8 ITHBAX
Year ended 31 March
HBE3ASIHLEE
2019 2018
2019 20184F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
P aE FE T FAT
Employee benefit expenses BERFFAEZ (TaE 9
(excluding directors’ emolument) EEE) 18,200 16,174
Directors’ emolument FEME 5,555 5,805
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHEMAX 13,927 16,394
Legal and professional fees ERREEBR 2,403 2,765
Rent and rates e RE 243 269
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRT N &
— audit services — R 1,150 1,050
— non-audit services — JERERTE 250 250
Bank charges RITUE 566 703
Referral fee HNE A 1,565 5,139
Valuation and search fee HEREMER 1,443 1,205
Depreciation of property, Y - B MRETE 16
plant and equipment 2,945 2,992
Other expenses Ebis 5,704 6,115
53,951 58,861

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 9

BERAAX (TEEEEHS)

EMOLUMENTS)

Year ended 31 March
BZEZSAZNBLEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
Salaries and bonus e MIEA 17,080 15,251
Other benefits E 508 355
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIREKRA — REHIK

plans (Note) =& (FI5E) 612 568
18,200 16,174

Note: FI5E -

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
relevant income with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 3 directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
3), whose emoluments are reflected in Note 10. The emoluments
payable to the remaining 2 individuals for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: 2), are as follows:

AEBRBEECREIEREDF BRG] 2 o
wEATESEE (TRESE ) - BRiEgESE
FHRE - BERIMEEBRAARERMABYK
A2 5% (8 A LR &1,500%7T) m%iE S5 El
K - ERBBE A - AERBZW—EERR
FEEIEHPAR MR o MECRUH KA MR
RREFE A PR

HZE2019F3 A3 BILFE AEETR
HROHATBIEIZ (20184 : 34)
EF ZEWE S REAHE10- BE
Z2019F3A3THILFE - ERf#T2
HZ018F 2R ) I AL 2B € 40
T

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3IHLEE

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH& T FHET

Salaries and bonus e Rt 2,564 2,570
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRIREKA — REH-KETE 36 36
2,600 2,606
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 9 {EEEMEX(FTEEEE#HE)
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (%)
The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the rilFEFATCHMESHELT -
following band:

Year ended 31 March
BZEZ3A3BHLEE

2019 2018
2019 % 2018 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T-2,000,000 7 7T 2 2
2 2
10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS 10 ESEFRAE
(a) Directors’ emoluments () ESME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: AKANRBEZZMeETNET -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services HZE2019F3A31BILFEMIEA
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary EERANNTNEWB AR EFRE
undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2019: BARFS 2 B A sk FE UG B & -
Estimated

money value  Employer’s
of other  contribution
benefits  to the MPF

Fees Salaries Bonuses (Note) Scheme Total
HittgFz BRE
FHELS HE- 4

e e A BEME) EEHR CH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TR

Executive directors HTEE

Mr. Chan Koung Nam BHEEE - 1,455 241 - 18 1,714
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam BEAELE - 1,455 24 840 18 2,554
Mr. Tse Pui To #EELE - 1,258 416 - 18 1,692

Independent non-executive ~ BIYFHITEE

directors
Mr. Chan SiuWing Raymond Rk & %4 125 = = - - 125
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry Kigleta 185 o - - - 185
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REELE 125 = = = = 125

435 4,168 898 840 54 6,395

—] 40 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R I ot

10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued) 10 BEEX R K% (4)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a EEM£#E)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services HZE2018FE3IAIMHILEEFIEA
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary EEARNTHENWB AT ERKIZME
undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2018: BARBEZEf e EWENS -
Estimated

money value  Employer’s
of other  contribution
benefits ~ to the MPF
Fees Salaries Bonuses (Note) Scheme Total
Higflz wiEE
AR tElz
e ) T EEEE) BEHR CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR  TER TR TAR TER AR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Chan Koung Nam BtmEE - 1,408 347 - 18 1,768
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William BHELE - 1,403 347 840 18 2,608
Mr. Tse Pui To HEELE - 1,194 637 - 18 1,849

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors

Mr. Chan SiuWing Raymond ~ [Rk& %4 120 - - - - 120

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry Rialest 180 - - - - 180

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REE LA 120 - - - - 120
420 4,000 1,331 840 54 6,645

Note: fIEE -

No other benefits include share option benefits (2018: Nil) and the R A H 18 A £ 15 BB AR 4R F (2018 4F -

estimated money value for rental of the residential property owned by the E)VANBAANEEEERRNBE A FER

Group and used by Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam of HK$840,000 (2018: ZEEWE 2 S E5E % (E(E 840,000

HK$840,000). 77T (20184 : 840,000 7T) °
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

11

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodied corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 35, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2018: Nil).

FINANCE COSTS

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

10 ES®MNRN&E#)

EERNERBER

B E =N AR E AU & YR
EAARRAR I S BE B AR A (2018 4 -
) -

EEREOFE=ZFRHEZK
&
HE2019F3A3IBHILFE W
HESRBASE = FIRERE 5
= MERERARE (20184 « 4E) o

EBUES ZZEEEEH
ZEANBBREZEZEEZEH
BHrERAZSRAZER £
BEXREMRZER
MEBENES  IREESEHZ
FAEREREZSEEEEHEERE
BZHAZER EEFREMZ S
(20184F « #) o

EERRS  ZHAESHZE
R

BRETAECESPTIREEIN  BEFKEK
RERERER - NRABALEFTZE
EREEEXBEERARNARESER
ETHAEARS (BEREZRIME)

ZEARG - B RE# (20184 :
/) o

BE KA

Year ended 31 March
HBE3ASIBHLEE

2019 2018
2019 20184F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Interest on secured bank borrowings REFAZEEE 2 HEMR

wholly repayable within 5 years RITRE KA E 15,835 10,565
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZF B 332 376
Interest on amount due to a fellow subsidiary BN —RR R E R S ZIEF &

(Note 35(a)) (FfE35(a)) 7,271 5,241
Interest and other expenses on bonds BHZF B REAMREY 7,176 8,679
Interest on other borrowings H At A& 5K A S 4,037 2,661
Total finance costs BB R AN 42 %E 34,651 27,522
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12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12 FIEBiRAX

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3HLEEE

2019 2018
20195 20184F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Hong Kong profits tax BEBENGEWR
— Current year — KEE 5,486 7,652
— (Oven/under provision in prior years — BAFE (BEEE)
BETR (416) 250
Deferred income tax expense/(credit) RIEATSRFS (ER) 1,299 (3,333)
6,369 4,569
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the NE B R PTAS B A s R 2 4 2 T TH L TR 5
theoretical amount that would arise as follows: SRECERNT
Year ended 31 March
HE3ASNALEE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHxT FAT
Profit before income tax B PR 4S5 A1 s A 48,533 54,619
Calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate REBNEHBE165%E
of 16.5% 8,008 9,012
(Oven)/under provision in prior year BEFE (BEEE) BETR (416) 250
Income not subject to taxation R SN (1,414) (4,910)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes IR 356 526
Recognition of previously unrecognised ERBA R HERBIEEE
tax losses = (309)
Tax concession MEEER (165) -
Income tax expense FIS B X 6,369 4,569

FRRRARARAD {43
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 EREF
(@) Basic earnings per share (a) EREXRER
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SRERAEFNZAEFRXAEBARAT
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$42,164,000 (2018: B A JE (5 742,164,000 T
HK$50,050,000) by the weighted average number of (20184F : 50,050,000 7T, ) B LA &
415,000,000 (2018: 415,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during ZO019FE3A31HIFEEE BTE
the year ended 31 March 2019. B B 2 A0 HE T ¥ #415,000,000 8%
(20184 : 415,000,000 %) °
Year ended 31 March
BE3HA3NBLEE
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit attributable to owners AREEEANEIEET
of the Company (HK$’000) (F&71T) 42,164 50,050
Weighted average number of M EERELREF 2 B 8T
ordinary shares in issue for MR 2 9 E(FAR)
basic earnings per share ('000) 415,000 415,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARRAF GBI 10.2 12.1
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ER#HFRR

144

Diluted earnings per share during the year ended 31 March 2019
is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the share option
scheme are the only dilutive potential ordinary shares of the
Company. For the share options, the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options less the number of shares that could have been issued at
fair value (determined as the average market price per share for
the year) for the same total proceeds is the number of shares
issued for no consideration. The resulting number of shares
issued for no consideration is included in the weighted average
number of ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.

HE2019F3A31HIEEE &R/
BEAN  DRE2SBAERETE
EYELTEE  BRAERITEINE
AR MEFIEETE - IRIRE R
FHEIR] FEIT 2 RD AN ARIE—A
BIEEEYE LR - HERET
T REBITEEREmREETTZR
DB REERFTEFIEAEEA
FE(DEFRASRFAMEET)
FraessiT 2 8B - BAUNTRE
BITZRMOEE - BB HUTNRE
BIOZBROBERTESRESRF
Brat AMEARS B2 L@k inEFEs
o
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 13
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

ZRER ()
(b) BREFERRN#)

Year ended 31 March
BE3ASIHILEE

2019 2018
2019 20184F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHE T FHET
Profit attributable to owners AREEE ANEEET
of the Company (HK$’000) (F&71T) 42,164 50,050
Weighted average number of M EEREERF 2 B 8T
ordinary shares in issue for diluted SRR 2 N B (R
earnings per share ('000) 415,000 415,000
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FlEEAF GBI 10.2 12.1

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for year ended 31
March 2019 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options as the exercise prices of the outstanding share
options were higher than the average market price per share of
the Company during the year.

14 DIVIDENDS 14
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 of HK1.3
cents per share, totaling HK$5,395,000, is to be declared at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

MR EE2019F3 A31HIEFEE
KRITEBEREZITEESRARRR
NERFEHE  HAEZFE2E
{8 48 5 0 B I 4 B AR AN A R BB PR A
ETTE -

i 2
AARBREERRBEFASEREE
2019F 3 A1 HIEFEZ R EZR1.3
AL - A A5,395,0008 T © X ELEA M
MR BRI ZERMARE -

Year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIHILEE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
Interim dividend paid of HK1.2 cents BBk B ERR 1.2 810
(2018: HKO0.8 cents) per share (20184 : 0.8 11l) 4,980 3,320
Proposed final dividend of HK1.3 cents BEARAKRESR1.38(L
(2018: HK1.2 cents) per share (20184 = 1.2781l) 5,395 4,980
10,375 8,300
EREEEEERAH
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15 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 15

FLOWS
(@) Cash generated from operations (a)

RERERERZME
REFRBARE

Year ended 31 March
BE3ASIBHLEE

2019 2018
2019 20184F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FHxT FHT
Profit before income tax B BTS84 B A 48,533 54,619
Adjustments for: RTYSBEEL AR
Depreciation e 8 2,945 2,992
Interest expenses FEFRX 11 34,651 27,522
Fair value losses/(gains) on EEHREWEZ
revaluation of investment NEEERS
properties (Uezf) 1,490 (21,640)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHRATERTA
financial asset at fair value BansemEEL
through profit or loss N EREE (179) -
Provision for impairment FEWE SR E R 7
assessment of loans receivable BHE
16,870 7,060
Loans and interest receivables Jil 5 Uk B R B 7
written off 7,831 7,931
Changes in working capital: BEBEEEE
Loans receivable FEUCE K (63,984) (39,428)
Interest receivables JFE WA 8, (4,017) (1)
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - ek
other receivables Hh fEUGRIE 932 3,448
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMEN A (1,795) 1,277
Repossessed assets Ue[el & = = (35,859
Cash generated from operations KERMSEHRE 43,281 7,751

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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15 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 15 SZEHERERZHIsTE (&)
FLOWS (Continued)

(b)  This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) AEFE A E E=20194F K 20184 3
financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. B3BIFEEMEEHELSER
B2 HER
Amount
due to Bank
a fellow Dividend and other
subsidiary Payable Bond  borrowings Total
ﬁgﬁ_ﬁﬂ
e PFITR
ARIFE EfTAR S &% H it &K st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT TER TET TR T

At 1 April 2017 R2017E4818 69,700 - 118,797 315,752 499,249
Non cash — dividend declared ¥HRe - BETRKE - 7,885 - - 7,885
Non cash — interest cost FBE — FBHRAK - - 2,122 - 2,122
Cash flow BHeng 55,584 (7,885) (10,000) 6,691 44,390
At 31 March 2018 H2018%F3 A 31 H 125,284 - 105,919 322,443 553,646
At 1 April 2018 R2018FE4A1H 125,284 - 105,919 322,443 553,646
Non cash — dividend declared FHE - BEERKE - 9,960 - - 9,960
Non cash — interest cost FBE — FBHRAK - - 1,297 - 1,297
Cash flow Beng (18,760) (9,960) (9,000 38,440 720
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A 31 H 106,524 - 98,216 360,883 565,623
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 W% BMERRHE

Land and Office Furniture Leasehold Motor
buildings ~ equipment  and fixtures improvements vehicles Total
i RET BREE  RRRERE HEMERE a8 =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAR TAT TAT AT
At 31 March 2017 R2017E3A31H
Cost AR 90,326 1,467 1,796 3,955 2,174 100,318
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (10,687) (682) (1,441) (8,571) (2,408) (18,789)
Net book amount ERFE 79,639 785 355 384 366 81,529
Year ended 31 March 2018 HZ201853A31ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 79,639 785 355 384 366 81,529
Additions NE - 1,378 98 9 615 2,100
Depreciation & (1,938) (208) (123) (114) (519) (2,999)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 77,701 1,865 330 279 462 80,637
At 31 March 2018 2018 F3A31H
Cost A 90,326 2,837 1,894 3,964 2,559 101,580
Accumulated depreciation 258 (12,625) 972) (1,564) (3,685) (2,097) (20,943)
Net book amount EEFE 77,701 1,865 330 279 462 80,637
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZE201953A31ALEFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 77,701 1,865 330 279 462 80,637
Additions NE - 419 87 - - 506
Depreciation nE (1,937) (614) (138) (102) (154) (2,945)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 75,764 1,670 279 177 308 78,198
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H
Cost (D% 90,326 3,256 1,981 3,964 615 100,142
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (14,562) (1,586) (1,702) (3,787) (307) (21,944)
Net book amount EEFE 75,764 1,670 279 177 308 78,198

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s land and buildings with net book value
of approximately HK$75,764,000 (2018: HK$77,701,000) were
pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to two

subsidiaries of the Company (Note 31(ii)).
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MR2019F3 A31H  AEEKREFENA
75,764,000/ 7T (20184 : 77,701,000/ 7T)
2 REFEEIFF —REBRITEALRD
AR T MK B A R R RITE R 2 R
(BEEB1)) °
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17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 ®REWYHX
As at 31 March
A3HA31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHT
At beginning of year REH) 86,170 64,530
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation EEQTEEE), (1,490) 21,640
At end of the year TR 84,680 86,170

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligation for future repairs and maintenance (2018: Nil). At 31 March
2019 and 2018, the investment properties of the Group were pledged
to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to a subsidiary of the
Company (Note 31(i)).

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by the independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisals
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment properties as at
31 March 2019 and 2018. The fair value gains are included in “Fair
value gains on revaluation of investment properties” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The recurring fair value measurements for investment properties are
included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 March 2019 and
2018 by independent professionally qualified valuer who hold a
recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment properties
valued. For all investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

M 2019F 3 A31 H » REEIWEH KKK
HIERIRE Z ABEC T OER (2018 4F -
) o PN20194F 20184331 H » A&
EREMECDERT —BRITEAELR
RAIET — KB R R ERBRITE R ZER
(FEE31()) °

AEERENERBYESELEMETH
BEEBRARETBY(GE  UETE
B Y ER2019F K2018F3A31HZ A
FAE o RFEERFEFALEEERARZ
[EHTREDEZ A TFEKE] A -

BREMEZKEURNTEASFAE R
RPEER - AEEZBRBEREMHHIF
MEBTMEKREBEER  BERATESR
RzBARBL RERN F-HK F=
MBRE=F MW R -

REBZREMERBIEELSERGE
BMF 20194 K 2018 63 A 31 H#EST(HE -
EHRGEEMSERERTEEER I
BEBRREMENERD T H 2R
HEs - BRIEFMBEREMEZRAEER
RixmR&ERR -

EREEKREARAR
2019 F
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17

150

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s finance department includes personnel that review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. The results are reported directly to the chief financial officer
(“CFO”) and the audit committee (“AC”). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuer at
least once every six months, which is in line with the Group’s interim
and annual reporting dates. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the fair
values of these investment properties have been determined by Roma
Appraisals Limited.

At each financial year end the finance department verifies all major
inputs to the independent valuation report, assess property valuations
movement when compared to prior year valuation reports; and holds
discussion with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting
date during bi-annual valuation discussions between the CFO, AC and
the valuation team. As part of this discussion, the team presents a
report that explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties was determined by using the
sale comparison method approach (Level 2 approach). Sales price of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square foot.

17

REME (&)

REBEF B2 ABEHB L& EMH
BHREFT#HITHE BREREERTE
RE((HHRE ) REZZE2([ERZE
BEER - REEGAEEHZPHEFE
WERHE - MBeE BEREZEgHME
M B NERRAE— X AmEERERF
N4 R o R20194F K20184F3H31H -
WEREMEZ A FEREFTERTEE
RARERE -

REMBRFER  MBBZEBLAEER
TAEMIBHARE  BEFHERS
HWBAFEMEGEEE  LERBTH
BRI °

RERERH MR FERZE8eH
HERSKESSF - R2ZEESZE LN
E_RNE=RRATVEZED - ERRA
WMime—#n  FHER2XWmE - Bt
BRATEZSZRRA -

BT %

REMEZHEDERHEELEE(F R
LEDR)EE - L2 H (DI EmEE)
ZERBPEMOATLBMEZEE - Bt
BTEZHRBERBGABEBEAEFTRZE

o
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18 SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Group:

18 MIBA T
AT ARER > M B AT -

Principal activities and Particulars of Percentage of
Name Place of incorporation place of operation issued share capital interest held
£ S AL FTEEBREELY ERTRAFE FisgREI
2019 2018
20196 20185
Directly owned:
=E:3 1o
HKF Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each
RERAES REERERR 10,000 A B REE 1 =TT
L ERR
Easylend Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong US$1 each
RERAES REERERR 100 BREE 1T
L EER
Indirectly owned:
RS
Asia Ford Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
BERABRRA Tk REEMEREERR 10,000 iR iR
Charterfame Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
EEREBRAR Tk REEMEREERR 10,000 R & Ak
EasyLend Finance Company Hong Kong Money lending business of 150,000,000 100% 100%
Limited providing personal loans ordinary shares
in Hong Kong
SEREEERAA 0 REBREILAER 150,000,000 & & @R
CHEEK
EasyLend Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 share of HK$1 each 100% 100%
SERBRAR Tk Tmex 1REE ATz kG
Hong Kong Finance Company Hong Kong Money lending business of 100,000,000 100% 100%
Limited providing properly mortgage ordinary shares
loans in Hong Kong
BB EENHERAT 0 REBREMEZBER 100,000,000 & & i@k
CHEEK
Max Art Limited Hong Kong Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
HERBRRT Tk Tmex 10,000 R iR
EEREESERRAR

2019 F 3R
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 REHEszEMIA
As at 31 March
A3AS31H
2019 2018
2019 % 2018 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Assets per consolidated statement of HEARMBRRRAREE
financial position
Financial assets measured at amortised WEEK AT EZSRMEE
cost/loans and receivables B EUBGRIE
Loans receivable FEUE 881,299 843,479
Interest receivables JFE U B 22,075 18,058
Deposits and other receivables e R HALEWFIR 401 652
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 37,294 33,710
Total financial assets measured at amortised REER A EZ SREE,
cost/loans and receivables B R ERGIERRE 941,069 895,899
Available-for-sale investment AEHERSE = 625
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEABRZZEMERE
profit or loss 800 -
Total @zm 941,869 896,524
Liabilities per consolidated statement of REMBRRRFARERS
financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R AT IR 2R B E
Trade and other payables B SR HAERNFIE 6,553 8,249
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FEf—RER ZHB AR08 106,524 125,284
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EALE K 360,883 322,443
Bonds &% 98,216 105,919
Total 1BEE 572,176 561,895

20 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITOR 20 RATEABZZEREE

LOSS
As at 31 March
M8AB1H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At beginning of the year REH] - -
Reclassified from available-for-sale investment ~ BRIt HEREEHH LA 625 -
Fair value gain N ERE 175 -
At end of the year REF 800 -
The financial asset is an unlisted instrument denominated in Hong Kong CREEDABTIEZELTIA W
dollars and is classified as non-current assets. DERIERDEE °
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21 LOANS RECEIVABLE 21

FEW & K

As at 31 March

A3HA31H
2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Gross loans receivable — property JEUE 42 — MERBER
mortgage loans 779,842 722,417
Gross loans receivable — personal loans EWEZ@EE — AAAER 134,323 140,613
Total gross loans receivable JEM SRR 914,165 863,030
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE
— Stage 1 — B (4,444) -
— Stage 2 — B2 (697) -
— Stage 3 — EBIMEER (19,894) -
Provision for individual impairment UL B SRR R R B B
of loans receivable = (3,723)
Provision for collective impairment FEUR E RS R E R R
of loans receivable - (7,897)
Loans receivable directly written-off HEMEREIKER (7,831) (7,931)
Loans receivable, net of provision FEUE SR - HBRE R 881,299 843,479
Less: non-current portion R IERBNE Y (138,153) (165,917)
Current portion mENE D 743,146 677,562

The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying

amounts approximate their fair values.

Except for personal loans receivable of HK$134,323,000 (2018:
HK$140,613,000) which are unsecured, loans receivable are secured
by collaterals provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable

with fixed terms agreed with the customers.

AEBEREBERRENRBBREMERLRS
ERRAERZ AR - LABTAHE
iR ERE QA FERE

B & #134,323,000% TT(20184 :
140,613,000 7 7T ) 2 FE UK FL A B 505 S K
BN EREFARFREZKFPRIES
iR STERARERPZETE 2 E TR

EREEKREARAR
2019 F
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21 LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 21 EWERE)
The movements on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable for the TREVNAEBEHZ2019F3A31 B1EF
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out the table below. EREKREZREZF -

Year ended 31 March 2019
BZ201953A31HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RER FE2MR Y @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TET
Balance as at 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A 31 B2 &t 11,620
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 R W%/ﬁﬁﬁ“#ﬁiﬁgﬂ
FORTE 1,463
Balance at 1 April 2018 R20185 4 A1H 2 & 8,228 1,132 3,728 13,083
New loans originated HEEX 2,522 209 3,136 5,867
Loans recovered or repaid during FRUEHERER
the year (3,242) - (2,616) (5,858)
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 F1REREAF M (1,143) 1,143 - -
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 ERIEE YK Ex (3,483) - 3,483 -
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3 FoOMBEAFIRE - (1,096) 1,096 -
Total transfers between stages PRER 2 BB (4,626) 47 4,579 -
Impact on year end ECL exposure HEKEMEEBLRR
T8 (2,504) - 15,990 13,486
Movement within same stage dueto ~ RIEEEBEEN M35
change in credit risk R—FEERAZE 4,066 (691) - 3,375
Write-offs WisH - - (4.918) (4.918)
As at 1 March 2019 W2019F3A1H 4,444 697 19,894 25,035
The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure of loans receivable as at AEBREZ2019F3A31HILFEZE
year ended 31 March 2019 is set out in Note 3.1(b). The movements WERZAEERBEEHNME310) » T
on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable for the year ended 31 I AEEHE2018F3A31HILFEE
March 2018 are set out below. WEFRE 2 &) -
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21

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
Movements on the Group’s individual impairment of loans receivable
are as follows:

PEUR 5K (4
¢E@ﬁwgﬂM%m@z BT -

2018

2018 4F

HK$'000

FHET

At beginning of the year REH] 3,150
Provision for individual impairment JE LSS SRR B (B 1 #8558

of loans receivable, net 573

At end of the year REF 3,723

For property mortgage loans, the Group performs collective impairment
assessment of loans receivable by grouping together all its receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics and by applying a historical
impairment rate, taking the average of the most recent 3 financial
periods of the percentage of impairment loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income to the total loans
and interest receivables as at the respective year end dates.

For personal loans, the Group performs collective impairment
assessment of loans receivable by grouping together all its receivables
with similar customer credit ratings and by applying a historical
impairment rate, which has been derived since the commencement of

RYEZIBER CARBEEBEAE
P A 15 & R R 1%51*EM2FELISZ/TAIE AR
ABEREESEEETETERRERN
it 38 TE R B 3 R A AR A S {E B ER A ] A
,né’i\ﬁﬂﬁz)\ﬁPﬁﬁﬁwﬂﬁﬁéﬁé{ﬂﬁfai

BAZERWERENBBAERES L Z T
fEaJr

RULAERME  AEEEBEAEME
EFPEEGAESE 2 BWKEIR - WA B
ERER(BEAKRERRILAEREGEE
E)LA&Q%,HJ’EE%H??WE}\%% Zk

the personal loans business of the Group, as well as making reference R E FUE TR E R o
to the rates adopted by other licensed money lenders.
Movements on the Group’s collective impairment of loan receivables REBFEWREFEERE BB T -
are as follows:
2018
20184
HK$'000
FET
At beginning of the year REH 1,410
Provision for collective impairment W E SRR E R AR
of loans receivable, net 6,487
At end of the year REFIR 7,897
EACEEEARAT
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21

22

156

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 21 EWERE)
As at 31 March 2019, loans receivable amounted to HK$7,831,000 R2019E3 A31H » &k & 77,831,000
(2018: HK$7,931,000) had been written-off. These relate to customers 7 7T (20184 : 7,931,000 7T ) & i 85 o
who are either (i) in financial difficulties; (i) declared bankruptcy; or (i) FEAFESMEPNEYYERE (i) B
deceased and in the opinion of the directors, such loans receivable are EMEE: (i) BEFWMMEZRAE LK
uncollectible. OB RS ER -
A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the reporting BEINPAEREHNBREEEZ  BEREZR
periods, based on the maturity date and net of provision, is as follows: SREEAR 7 B HBE SR AN T ¢
As at 31 March
MR3A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current BIEA 738,725 677,562
2-5 years 2FE 54 56,905 80,085
Over 5 years 59 F 85,669 85,832
881,299 843,479
As at 31 March 2019, certain properties mortgaged to the subsidiary of MR2019F3A31 A - ETEFEFAREE
the Company for loans granted to its respective customers were THEAREAEMBERFERER 2HE
pledged to independent third party to secure bank and other WZMECERTBYLE = EAER
borrowings granted (Note 31(ii). AT I EoAth i 5K 2 R (B 5 31 i) o
OTHER ASSET 22 HtEE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group subscribed for a third
party customer credit report checking service.

The Group’s other asset is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

HE2019F3A31HILFE  AEEGTH
F-ABRFPEEREEERY -

REEZ KW EENEITFHE ©

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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23

24

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

23 BRRIE

As at 31 March

A3HA31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHT
Interest receivables FEUF B, 22,075 18,058

The Group’s interest receivables, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying
amounts approximate their fair values.

Except for interest receivables of HK$2,944,000 (2018: HK$2,233,000)
which are unsecured, interest receivables are secured by collaterals
provided by customers and repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the
reporting dates is the carrying value of the receivables mentioned
above.

REPOSSESSED ASSET

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collecterals held as security. The nature and carrying value of these
assets held as at 31 March are summarised as follows:

24

AEBREMNERENBBRIEMELRS
BERRAANERZREET - LBTEHE -
iR ERE QA FERS

Br % £02,944,0007% 7T (2018 4F : 2,233,000
PEIL) 2 FEUH) BB EIK RSN - FEUCF B A
BEEREZKFREAKF  ARERS
HEZEEHRAEER - REHREASHE
Hr e REERR A EWRZIE 2 RE
@ °

BEEE

R ARBEBRERHIFERZERS
BRAE - IR SEENIASI B2
B RAREER T -

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Repossessed asset — a mix of commercial WEEE — BMEMBYE
and residential property 35,859 35,859

The estimated market value of the repossessed asset held by the
Group as at 31 March 2019 was HK$44,400,000 (2018:
HK$42,500,000). It comprises property in respect of which the Group
has acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or
voluntary actions by the properties concerned) for release in full or in
part of the obligations of the borrower.

R20194F 3 A31 H + AREBEFFKEEE
2 {# 51 11 1B & 44,400,00078 7T (2018 4F ¢
42,500,000 8 7T ) o H g A 47N & [ 5 A 5k
2 (M REER P AR E 2 B 1T
B)ABBRERAZEHRET D EE2WE
A -

EREEKREARAR
2019 F
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25 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 FEAMAFIE - BERHMEWRFE

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT Tt
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 1,079 1,485
Deposits birsia 163 160
Other receivables Hfth FEUFRIE 238 492
1,480 2,137
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and other receivables NEFRSLEMEKZIE ZERESEE
approximate their fair values. NFEEE
The Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables are NEFZFENKIE e LEMEIKIE
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. LA TTETHE o
All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. PR S N H b pE U 57018 55 7k 360 H I 455
15 o
26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERBREZEY
As at 31 March
MW8AB1H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Cash at bank and maximum exposure RITHES &
to credit risk BANEERR 37,294 33,710
The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. ReRRSEBYAETEHE -

—] 58 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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27

28

SHARE CAPITAL 27 PR
Number of shares Share capital
RABE (&
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 F 2018 F 2019 F 20184
’000 shares ‘000 shares HK$’000 HK$'000
Tit FH& TER TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREENBI2EER
Authorised: HE
At beginning and end of the year REMRELR 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRABRE
At beginning and end of the year REPREL 415,000 415,000 4,150 4,150
SHARE OPTIONS 28 BIRAE

On 1 April 2016, 21,350,000 share options were granted to eligible
directors and selected employees. These share options have an
exercise price of HK$0.89 with a vesting period of 0-2 years. These
share options are exercisable until 31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no share options were granted.

Options are conditional on the employee completing 0-2 years of
service (the vesting period). The options are exercisable starting one
year and two years from the grant date. The group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

R2016F4A1H BRAEREERE
T BB % 121,350,000 17 B - %58
fiE 2 1T (EA0.898 T REBHAOE?2
FozEHREAITEEZ202063 A31
Hik -

HEC01963A31BILFE  HEREE
X HE o

BRREAREE TKOE2F IR (FBH)
B AMEE - BAER AR A HER —
FRMETE - AEBYEEERETE
EURE LB EEEE -
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28

29

160

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 28 BRE#E)
Movements in share options are as follows: B EE ST
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHET
At beginning of year REF] 18,800 19,150
Lapsed B KK = (350)
At end of the year PGS 18,800 18,800
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year REZE2019F3 A31 HItFER T 2B
ended 31 March 2019 was determined using the binomial valuation EZMEFEEATFEFRA -—_BNGHEER
model was HK$0.17 per option. The significant inputs into the model BEETASMHERECATET ZEAZE
were closing share price of HK$0.84 at the date of grant, exercise price TG ABUE AR B E 2 IR W {E0.84
shown above, volatility of 39%, dividend yield of 5.4%, an expected BT EXFTRITEE - KIE39% - KA
option life of five years, and an annual risk-free interest rate of 1.03%. E5.4% TBAEREFRAFERER RS
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share % A1.08% o R TEHIIR B B 3R 2 12 R Bk
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share closing prices Ret2 ZRED AR E BHABEHEA
of the Company over past period preceding the grant date. ARAEFARMETEZRABELS T AE
%
RESERVES 29 f#fE

The amount of the Group’s reserve and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 87 of this consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s capital reserve represents the excess of the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s share issued in exchange therefor.

AEERAFEREF HEREEDEHE
SIRAGA BB RE B 87 A2 AR
BB -

REE 2 B BIENA QR LA
RipEEEERBZHBRARRN 2HE
B AN R B BT AR ER LA B £ 2 B 4D T
B8R -

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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30 OTHER PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

31

30 HtENRIERESER

As at 31 March

A3HA31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Rental deposits received Bl EEZe 498 454
Interest payable on bonds BH 2 TS 1,147 1,246
Other payables and accrued charges E R SRIE R FEETRIZ 4,908 6,549
6,553 8,249

The Group’s other payable and accruals are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows:

31

AREE 2 b ENFRBRESERAET
sHE - MEREEREEAFERES -

RITRHAMIERK
RITREMERDTT

As at 31 March

A3A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Bank loans IRITER 217,771 233,003
Bank overdrafts RITEX 21,112 18,440
Other borrowings EMEK 122,000 71,000
Total bank and other borrowings RITREAMBERERE 360,883 322,443

The weighted average effective interest rate on bank loans and bank
overdrafts during the year ended 31 March 2019 was 5.0% (2018:
4.7%) per annum.

Other borrowings of HK$122,000,000 (2018: HK$71,000,000) are
unsecured, interest bearing at rates ranging from 4.5% to 24.0% (2018:
ranging from 4.5% to 6.5%) per annum and repayable within one year.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, all bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair
values.

HE201943A31BILEE  SRITERL
BB ZNEFHERFFNE AE5.0%
(20184 : 4.7%) °

#5%1122,000,000% 7T (2018 8 : 71,000,000 %%
L) ZEMERAEER  RFEMNENT
4.5%Z24.0%(2018%F : N F4.5%Z%6.5%)
STERAR—FENEE -

20194 K 2018463 A31H « A R 1T
ERAETTEHE - MR ERE A FER

e

Eo
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31

32

162

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the bank loans and overdrafts utilised by the
Group amounted to HK$238,883,000 (2018: HK$251,443,000).
Unutilised banking facilities as at the same date amounted to
HK$133,199,000 (2018: HK$120,559,000). These banking facilities
were secured by the followings:

(i) investment properties held by the Group amounting to
HK$84,680,000 (2018: HK$86,170,000);

(ii) land and buildings held by the Group with net book value of
HK$75,764,000 (2018: HK$77,701,000);

(i)  pledge of certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary of the
Company for loans granted to its respective customers. The fair
value of these properties were approximately HK$479,220,000
(2018: HK$524,420,000); and

(iv)  corporate guarantee of the Company.

BONDS

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had balances of Bond | and Bond
Il (in aggregate, the “Bonds”) with an aggregate amount of
HK$84,000,000 and HK$18,000,000 (2018: HK$84,000,000 and
HK$27,000,000), before placing commission, respectively, with coupon
rates at 6.0% (2018: 6.0%) and 4.5% (2018: 4.5%) per annum,
respectively, repayable in 7 years from the respective issue dates. Bond
Il carries an option by the bondholders to redeem Bond Il three years
after the date of issuance. During the year ended 31 March 2019, a
principal amount of Bond Il of HK$9,000,000 was redeemed.

The aggregate carrying amounts of the Bonds are HK$98,216,000 as
at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$105,919,000), and approximate their fair
values. The fair values are determined using the expected future
payments discounted at effective interest rates prevailing at the year
ended and are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s bonds are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

31

32

MITRHEMERKE)

MR2019FE3 A31 H + AEEBEEFA 2 R1T
B 5 MBS 5238,883,00078 7T (2018 £
251,443,000/ 70) - AR - REAZE
77 Bh & A133,199,0007% Jr (20184
120,559,000 7T, ) © 2 FHRITRLE A 5]
BIEERERE

() A& TR © %8 /84,680,000 78 7T
(20184 : 86,170,000/8 7L ) 2 & &
LE

(iy A< E E P BR T (B & 75,764,000
7 7T (20184F : 77,701,000 7T ) 2
T RAETF

i)y HTFEBFAQRET —HEHSB
ANEERENMBEREFPFERERZ
EHRzME-ZEMEZATE
4] £479,220,0008 JT(20184F :
524,420,000/ 7T) : &

(iv) ARFZEELER-

e

M2019E3 A31H A F AL EN
B BC & A € A1) 2 Bl & 84,000,000 7T &
18,000,000 7t (2018 £F : 84,000,000 7T
127,000,000 7T) 2 EH — REH = (5
BIERDES ZEFEEDHH6.0%
(20184 : 6.0%) [ 4.5% (20184 :
45%) ' BRE B 2T 7 FAE
BE-BEHF_WTEHFBE ARERYNE
THHE=FEDGES = - REZE2019F
3AB31HIEFE - K€% /A9,000,000% T
ZESH BB -

R2019F3A31H @5 Z2EHEALS
98,216,000/ 7T (20184F : 105,919,000/
7T) - BEAFEEE - A FEDERERSE
FBIRITER AR 2 HHEAR RS SR E
EUWBATESRE-GBERN - ~E
EfEH 2 REENETTE -
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 33
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

IESE TS

EEAERBIBNITR SRR A ER
R EA EE AR - RIETEHEES
R — BB EREE - B REREHE
EREEEREH -

BEERBEENABBEZOMAT

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
Deferred tax assets: BEERIBEE
— To be recovered within 12 months — B 128 AR (619) (2,385)
Deferred tax liabilities: FEFRTEEE -
— To be settled after more than 12 months — BRBE12EBELE 2,210 2,918
Deferred tax liabilities, net BRI EFE 1,591 533

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

EEFISHAR R 2 BREFHIT

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T FET
At beginning of the year REH] 533 3,866
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 TR E B EREZERZE 95
(Note 2.1.1(b)) ZFAR (E2.1.1(0)) (241) -
Recognised in the consolidated statement Rz a2 mEUR AR ANTER
of comprehensive income 1,299 (8,333)
At end of the year AR 1,591 533
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33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 33 EEFER (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the BEFEHMEELRBBERERN &) (K
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within BRI —MELERBAZ &K W -

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Provisions for

collective
impairment of
Tax losses  loans receivable Total
JEME X
TiIEE A RS E R wEt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAET
At 1 April 2017 201744 A1 R - (233) (233)
Credited to the consolidated FFAZREEZEBAK
statement of comprehensive
income (1,520) (1,070) (2,590)
At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H (1,520) (1,303) (2,823)
Adjustment on adoption of TR E BB 53R 4E %8
HKFRS 9 (Note 2.1.1(b)) F IR AR
(M5£2.1.1(0)) - (241) (241)
Charged to the consolidated RiRE EERAF IR
statement of comprehensive
income 1,520 696 2,216
At 31 March 2019 F 201943 A 31 A - (848) (848)
Accelerated tax
depreciation
IRBIIETTE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2017 R2017F 4 18 4,099
Credited to the consolidated statement of SFASRAEETEBRARK
comprehensive income (743)
At 31 March 2018 201853 A31H 3,356
Charged to the consolidated statement of RERE 2 EBRARIR
comprehensive income 917)
At 31 March 2019 M20196 3 A31 H 2,439
As at 31 March 2018, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets of MRo01I8E3A3IHE AEECH LB A
HK$1,520,000 in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$9,215,000 9,215,000 7 7T 2 7] 4 BR BA 45 88 DASK S5 R 2k
that can be carried forward indefinitely against future taxable income. FERBMAZ R IEEBERRELERBEE

1,520,000/ 7T °

—] 64 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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34

35

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS — AS LESSOR 34 KEHEERE —/EAHEBEA
The Group leases out its investment properties to independent third REFEBRBETIREZKCEREHER
parties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease WY E=HFHBIEEYWSE - HEAN FA1
terms range from 1 to 2 years. T4 o
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable WEEEYMEZTURERETEY Bl
operating leases in respect of the investment properties are as follows: ZRRFERS BT -
As at 31 March
MW3A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Within 1 year 16 A 547 510
Within 2-5 years 2EL5FN 238 229
785 739
The Company did not have any significant capital commitment at 31 R2019F 3 A31 H » ARAWETMER
March 2019 (2018: Nil). B RHEIE (20184 « &) o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BEMLRZ

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried out
between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of
business during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, and
balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 March 2019
and 2018.

MBI EEEIEN S - TRAEE T
LB EERRITEERTENZ AL -
SEHAZEHRARERZEZ AL THHEE
AR

TSR AN S () R B B 5 AL = 2019 F
2018 3 A31 HILFEEHEEKBRR
RETZEARRS + LR 20194 % 2018
FIASTAZAB AR DR -

EREEKREARAR
2019 F
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 BEEAEXRE(E)
(@) Significant related party transactions () EXBBAIXS

(b)

()

166

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following
significant transactions were undertaken by the Group with
related parties.

fﬁ?zﬁfﬁﬁzm,\ﬁﬁ‘l@ DRI EEE SN - A
HERAB T ETZEARZUT

Year ended 31 March
BZ3AS1BLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interest expenses paid to NFF—HRREWBARZ
a fellow subsidiary FIERZ
— Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited RBEFEBRA
(“Tin Ching Industrial”) TXREE] 7,271 5,241

Interest expenses on an amount due to a fellow subsidiary was
charged at effective interest rate of 6.625% (2018: 6.5%) per
annum.

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary (b)
Tin Ching Industrial, a fellow subsidiary, provided the Group with

a loan facility with a limit of HK$200,000,000 (2018:
HK$200,000,000), of which the Group utilised an amount of
HK$106,524,000 (2018: HK$125,284,000) as at 31 March 2019.

The amount was unsecured, interest bearing at effective interest
rate of 6.625% (2018: 6.5%) per annum on the outstanding
amount, and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
amount due to a fellow subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

()

Key management compensation

JEN—MEREZM B AR ZIA TS
TR E B FF E6.625% (2018 4F -
6.5% ) Yg B -

PEf— Fﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ%’&? RIH
FEEMBARRBREERANEBREMHR
BEXmE Bﬁgﬁﬁjzoo,ooo,ooo,%yz
(20184F : 200,000,000 7T ) » 7N &
PR2019%F3A3TBE M HF
106,524,000/ 7L (2018%F :
125,284,000/ 7T) °

FZBAERF  REERIEER
F| & 6.625% (20184 : 6.5%) &t &
2%-2%&%2% Big - EN—RHRRMNE
AIFUAZ BREEBITEE ©

FEEEE M

Year ended 31 March
HBE3ASIBALEE

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Salaries and bonus e RIEAL 9,023 9,234
Other benefits ﬁﬁm%ﬂ 840 840
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ iRRERA — SEHETE 126 126
9,989 10,200

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 36

(a) Statement of financial position

KD 7] B AR R 3k
(@) HIBARRE

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARZIRE 480,903 472,349
Total non-current assets kRBEEREE 480,903 472,349
Current assets REBEE
Tax recoverable EREEE 176 414
Prepayments, deposits, and FERRE ek
other receivables HAb U GRIA 56 165
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEZEY 442 165
Total current assets TREEEHAZE 674 744
Total assets EEAE 481,577 473,093
Equity =
Equity attributable to the owners AATEEAEGEES
of the Company
Share capital A&7 4,150 4,150
Reserves & 363,023 361,741
Total equity QB 367,173 365,891
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEMNFIE 1,186 1,283
Bonds B+ - 27,000
Loan from a subsidiary kE—EHBRRZER 15,000 -
Total current liabilities BB EHALE 16,186 28,283
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Bonds E% 98,216 78,919
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEALE 98,216 78,919
Total liabilities =Rttt 114,402 107,202
Total equity and liabilities EERaEaE 481,575 473,093
Net current liabilities REBAEEHE (15,512) (27,539)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERS 465,391 444,810
BEREEKEEARLT

2019 F 3R
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 36 ZAATRIEIEARRE (&)
(Continued)

(b)

168

Reserve movements of the Company (b) AEAFEEES
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share capital Share-based retained
premium reserve payment eamings Total
IRHAER  URGAEER  (2HEBR)/
k17 E LERGE PANE RERF &z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin FHEL THEL Fitn T
Balance at 1 April 2017 RoI7TE4B1B2ES 103,685 260,829 3256 (3.919) 363,831
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2FEWAZE - - - 5,795 5795
Transactions with owners SBRBEAZRS
Employee share option scheme: EEBRENE
— Lapse of share options - BRER - - (60) 60 -
Dividends relating to 2017 BROITEZRE - - - (4,565) (4,565)
Dividends relating to 2018 BE2018E 2R E - - - (3,320) (3,320)
Balance at 31 March 2018 R2018E3 A3 A& 103,665 260,829 3,196 (5,949) 361,741
Representing ]
Reserves 1] 108,665 255,849 3,19 (5,949 356,761
Proposed final dividend BERERE - 4,980 - - 4,980
Balance at 31 March 2018 R2018E3 A3 A&t 103,665 260,829 3,196 (5,949) 361,741
Balance at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 A1 H 28 103,665 260,829 3,196 (5,949 361,741
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2EWALE - - - 11,242 11,242
Transactions with owners HEBAZRS
Dividends relating to 2018 BE2018EZRE - - - (4,980) (4,980)
Dividends relating to 2019 BE201952RE - - - (4,980) (4,980)
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31 Az&s 103,665 260,829 3,196 (4,667) 363,023
Representing 5
Reserves 4] 103,665 255,849 3,196 (4,667) 358,043
Proposed final dividend BEAHRE - 4,980 - - 4,980
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31 Az &s 103,665 260,829 3,196 (4,667) 363,023

The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the listing
of the Company’s share, over the nominal value of the

Company’s share issued in exchange therefor.

Under Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may
make distributions to its shareholders out of the capital reserves

in certain circumstances.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
s3=RYEFIIES

As at 31 March 2019 7201943 A 31 H
Percentage of
Remaining interest attributable
Property Use lease terms to our Company

LUES Rz g T AEH AATREEEZE DL

1. Unit No. 2 on 7th Floor Godown Medium term 100%
Sunray Industrial Centre B A HA
No. 610 Cha Kwo Ling Road
Kowloon
BE
RIRBEGI105
AEFITHEAF L
TE2E

2. Flat E on 10/F of Residential Medium term 100%
Block 3 (Orchid Court) = HHA
New Town Plaza (Phase llI)

Nos. 2-8 Sha Tin Centre Street
Shatin

New Territories

ot

W H

WHIERE2-85%
T S (B =H))

3R ()

10 BE=E

3. Unit No. 6A on 25th Floor Office Medium term 100%
Tower Two EE /N A HR
Lippo Centre
No. 89 Queensway
Hong Kong
B
B IEB B89
HEF L
TR
2512 6AE
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFHHME

RESULTS ey 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

2019 & 20184 2017 2016 4F 20154

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000  HK$000

F#x  TEx  TET TET TR

Revenue Uz 160,992 132,149 103,658 111,273 99,267
Profit and total comprehensive KRBVER AEL

income for the year attributable FERMNR

to owners of the Company SEIABEE 42,164 50,050 46,299 48,061 52,876

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B¥ERE&E 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

2019%F 20184 20174 20164 20154

HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000  HK$000

TExT FAETT FAET FET FETT

Total assets BERR 1,144,796 1,104,612 1,006,933 854,569 696,873

Total liabilities B E@E 575,069 565,867 510,353 391,600 268,972

Total equity B 569,727 538,745 496,580 462,969 427,901

—] 70 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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GLOSSARY
A

In this annual report, unless or otherwise further expressed, the following
expressions have the following meanings:

“Board”
=30

“CG Code”
[{bZEER~FRI]

“Code Provisions”
[ 5P RIE

“Company” or “our Company’

AR ARA/NCE

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ 12 IR R

“Director(s)”

[E%]

” o« LT

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”

R ] sk [ASR M ] ok [ 3P

“HK$”
[t

“HKICPA”
[ERAGMAE

“HK Finance”
[BABEE]

“Hong Kong”
e

4

“Listing Rules’

[ AR A

RAFHRA - RXEARBMAEIN
BUATHE

THlmzEA

the board of Directors
FEg

“Corporate Governance Code” and “Corporate Governance Report” contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
R BIM ST A E (R EERTRD R(EEERME)

the code provisions as set out under the CG Code
B ERSFRIFTESPRIME

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange
EEEEEBERARF
FRER £

—FHARASESEMKIZZBERAR - EERMHRBR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

A EMRRAIRTE TR

the director(s) of the Company

RRRER

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARAREKERF]

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEEEEEREET

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
E VN

Hong Kong Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability with a money lenders licence registered under MLO, which is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BEEEVBERAR  —BREEEIMRLZBERAR - HABRBEREAK
Pl MEARR - TAAARIBE2ENE QA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
hE ARANMBEEBRFRTHR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B X PTRE 5 L AR R

EREEKREARAR
2019 F
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GLOSSARY
A

“MLO”
RESEUNCEN

“Model Code”

[1E%E=r 8]

“SFO”

[ 5 R EE %]
“Share Option Scheme”
[EENRREEt 2 )
“Share(s)”

[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ ]

“Stock Exchange”
B 22 P

“Tin Ching Holdings”
PNt

“Tin Ching Industrial”
[ RBEEE]

—] 72 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEREEBZE 163 EZEAMED)

“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EHRBINEE T PEC EMETAZTRETE SR H 2 RESTA]D

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREPIE ST E(EH L ARER)

A share option scheme adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder of our Company on 4 September 2013
M2013F 9 A4 BRRBAARIERME—RE 2 EMABRRMN 2 BREL S

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RABIRAFEHREEOC.01 BT B

the holder(s) of Share(s)
SSESZ=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBMERIMERAT]

Tin Ching Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin
William, and a controlling shareholder of our Company

REBEREBERAR  —HREBEZHFSTMKIL 2 AR - BEREELE LR
KEFERIER 0% - WARREZEZERIRER

Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and owed as to 100% interest by Tin Ching Holdings
RKBEHEBRAR  —MREBFMNL2AR  ARSBERES 100% i
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